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Independ ent Auditor' s  Repo rt

To the  Members of Cover Sto ry Clothing Limited 
(Formerly known as Future Style Lab Lim ited)

Repo rt on the Audit of th e Ind AS Finan cial Statements

Opinion

We hav e audited the I nd A S fi nanci al statements of “Cover S tory Clothing Limited (Formerly kn own a s
Future S tyle Lab Limited) ” ("the C ompany"), which co m pri se the Bal ance Sheet as a t Mar ch 31, 2 024 , and
the Statement of P rofi t and Loss (i ncludi ng Other C omprehensi ve I n come), the Statement of C ash Fl ows
and the Statement of C hang es i n Equi ty for t he y e ar then ended , and n otes to the I nd A S Fi nancial
statements, includi ng  a summ a r y  of materi al  accounting pol i cies  and other expl anatory infor mation.

I n our opi ni on and to the best of our i nformati on and accordi ng to the ex pl anations g i v en to us, the
aforesai d I nd A S Fi nanci al statements g i v e the i nformation requi red by the C ompanies A ct, 2013 (“Act”) i n
the m anner so requi red and g ive a true and fai r view i n conformi ty wi th the I ndian A ccounting Standards
prescribed under section 133 of the A c t read wi th t he C ompani es (I ndi an A ccounting Standards) Rul es,
2015, as amended, (“I nd A S”)and other accounting p ri ncipl es g eneral ly accepted i n I ndi a, o f the state of
affai rs of the C ompany as at Mar ch 3 1, 2024 , the l oss and total comprehensi v e l oss , chang es i n equi ty and
i ts cash flows for the  y ear ended on  that da te.

Basis f o r Opinion

We conducted our audi t i n a ccordan ce wi th the S t andards on A udi ti ng (SA s) specified under section
143(10) of the C ompani es Act, 201 3. Our responsi bi l i ties under those S tandards are fur ther described i n the
Audi tor’s Respon sibil i ties fo r the A u d i t o f the Fi n a n cial S ta temen ts section of our report. We are
i ndependent of t he C ompany i n ac cordance wi th the C ode of Ethi cs i ssued by the I nsti tute of C hartered
Accountants of I ndi a (I C A I) together wi th the et hi cal requi rements that are rel ev ant t o o ur audi t of the
financial statements under the prov i s i ons of the A c t a nd the Rul es made thereunder, an d we hav e ful fi l l ed
our other ethi cal responsi bi l i ties i n accordance wi th these requirements and the I C AI ’s C ode of Ethi cs. We
bel i eve that the audi t evi dence we hav e obt ai ned i s suffi ci ent and appropr i ate to provi de a basis for our
opi ni on on the Ind A S fi nancial statements.

Oth er  Inf o rmation  /  Information  Oth er  th a n  th e  Ind  AS  Finan cial  Sta tements  a n d  Au ditor’s  Rep ort 
th ereon

The  C ompany ’s  Board  of  Direct ors  i s  respon si bl e  fo r  preparation  of  the  other  i nformati on.  The  other
i nformati on  comprises  the  i nformation  included  i n  the  Directors’  report,  bu t  does  not  i nclude  the  I nd  A S
Financial  statements and our audi tor’s  report thereon.
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Our  opi ni on  on  the  I nd  A S  Fi nancial  statem ents  does  not  cover  the  o ther  i nformation  and  we  do  not 
express any form of assurance con clusi on thereon.

I n connection wi th our audi t of the I nd A S Financial statements, our responsibi l i ty i s to read the o ther
i nformati on and, i n doi ng so, consi de r whether the other i nformati on i s m ateri all y i nconsi stent wi th the
I nd AS Fi nancial statem ents or our knowl edg e obtai ned duri ng the course of our audi t or otherwise appears
to be m ateri al l y m i sstated. I f, based on the work we h av e performed, we conclude tha t there i s a materia l 
mi sstatement of this other i nformation, we are requi red to report that fact. We hav e no thi ng to report i n
this regard.

Responsibilities of Man a gement and Those Ch a rged with Governance f o r the  Ind AS Financial Statements

The C ompa ny’s Board of Di rectors i s responsi bl e for the m atters stated i n section 134( 5) of the C ompani es
A ct, 20 13 (“ the A ct”) wi th respec t t o the preparati on of these I nd A S Fi nancial statements that g i v e a true
and fai r vi ew of the fi nanci al posi tion, fi nanci al performance, total comprehensive i ncome, chang es i n
equi ty and cash fl ows of the C ompany i n accordance wi th the accounti ng pri ncip l es generally accepted i n
I ndi a, i ncl udi ng the I ndi an A cc ounting Sta ndards (I n d A S) speci fi ed under section 13 3 of the A c t. T hi s
responsi bi lity al so i ncl udes maintenance of adequate accounti ng records i n accordan ce wi th the provisi ons
of the A ct for safeg uarding of the assets of the C ompany and for preventi ng and detecting frauds and other
irregulari ties; selection and appl i cati on of appr opriate accounti ng poli cies; maki ng judg ments and estimates
that are reasonabl e and prudent ; and desi g n, i m pl em entati on and mai ntenance of adequate i nternal
financial control s, that were operati ng effectively for ensuri ng the accuracy and compl eteness of the
accounti ng records , rel ev ant to the prepar ation and presentation of the I nd A S fi nanci al statements that
g i v e a true and fai r vi ew and are free from materi al misstatem ent, whether due  to fraud  or error.

I n prepari ng the I nd A S fi nancial statements, m ana g e m e n t i s responsible for assessi ng the C ompany ’s
abi l i ty to continue as a g oi ng concern, di sclosi ng , as appli cable, m atters rel ated to g oi ng concern and usi ng
the g oi ng con cern basi s of accou nting unl ess m anag em ent ei ther i ntends to li qui date the C ompany or to
cease operati ons, or  has no real i sti c alternative but to  do so.

The Board of  Di rectors i s al so responsi bl e for overseeing the C om pany’s financial reporting process.

Au ditor’s Responsibilities f o r the  Audit of  th e Ind AS Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtai n reasonabl e assurance about whether the I nd A S financial statements as a 
whol e are free from m ateri al misstatement, whether due to fraud or error , and to i ssue an audi tor’s report
that includes our opi ni on. Re asonable assurance i s a hi g h level of assurance, but i s not a g uarantee that an
audi t condu cted i n a ccordan ce wi th SA s wi l l al ways detect a m ateri al m i sstatement when i t exi sts.
Mi sstatements can ari se from fraud or error and are considered m ateri al i f, i n di vidually or i n the aggregate,
they coul d reasonabl y be expected to i nfl uence the economic decisions of users taken on the basi s of these
I nd AS fi nanci al statements.

A s  part  of  an  audi t  i n  accorda nce  wi th  SAs,  we  exercise  professi onal  judg m ent  and  m ai n t ai n   professi onal 
skepti ci sm throug hout the audi t. We al so:

i ) I dentify  and  assess  the  ri sks  of  m ateri al  m i sstatement of  the  fi nancial  statem ents,  whether  due
to  fraud  or  error,  desi g n  and  perform  audi t  procedur es  responsi ve  to  those  ri sks,  and  obtai n
audi t  ev i dence  that  i s   suffi ci ent  and  appropri ate  to  pr ovi de  a   basi s  for  our  opi ni on.  The  ri sk  of
not  detecting  a  m ateri al  mi sstatement  resul ti ng  from  fraud  i s   higher  than  for  one  resul ti ng
from  error,  as  fraud  m ay  i nv olve  col l usi on,  forgery,  i ntentional  omi ssio n s ,  mi srepresentations,
or the overri de of internal con trol.

i i ) Obtai n an understandi ng of i nternal control rel ev ant t o the au di t i n order to desi g n audi t
procedures that are appropriate i n the ci rcum stances. U nder section 143(3)(i ) of the
C ompani es  A ct,  2013 ,  we  are  al so  responsi bl e  for  ex pressi ng  our  opi ni on  on  whether  the
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company  has  adequate  i nternal  financial  controls   system  i n  place  and  the  operati ng 
effecti veness of such con trol s.

i i i) Eval uate  the  appropri ateness  of  accounting  pol i cies  used  and  the  reasona bl eness  of  accounting
estim ates and related di sclosures made by management.

i v ) C onclude  on  the  appropri ateness  of  manag ement’s  use  of  the  g oi ng  co ncern  basi s  of
accounti ng  and,  based  on  t he  audi t  ev i dence  obtai ned,  whether  a   m ateri al  uncertainty  exi sts
related  to  ev ents  or  condi ti ons  that  m a y   cast  si g nificant  doubt  o n  the  C ompany’s  a bi lity  to
continue  as  a  g oi ng  concern.  I f  we  conclude  that  a  m ateri al  uncertainty  exi sts,  we  are  requi red
to  draw  at tention  i n  our  audi tor’s  report  to  the  related  di scl osures  i n  the  fi nancial  statements
or, i f   such  di sclosures  are  i nadequate ,  to  m odi fy  our  o pi ni on.  Our  co nclusi ons  are  based  on  the
audi t  ev i dence  obtai ned  up  t o  the  da te  of  our  audi tor’s  report.  H owever,  fut ure  events  or
condi ti ons may cause the C om pany to  cease to  con tinue as a g oi ng concern.

v) Eval uate the overal l presentati on, struc ture an d con t ent of the fi nancial sta tements, i ncludi ng
the di scl osures, and whether t he financial statements represent the underl y i ng transactions
and events i n a manner that  achieves fai r presentation.

Material i ty i s the m ag ni tude of m i sstatements i n the f i nanci al statements that, i ndi v i dual ly or i n ag g regate,
makes i t probabl e that the economic decisions of a reasonabl y knowledgeable user of fi nancial statem ents
may be i nfl uenced. We consi der quantitative materiality and qual i tati ve factors i n (a) pl anni n g the scope of
our audi t work and i n eval uating the resul ts of our work; and (b) to ev al uate the effect of any i dentifi ed
mi sstatements i n the financial statements.

We communi cate wi th those charg ed wi th governanc e reg ardi ng , am ong other m at ters, the pl an ned scope
and ti m i ng of the audi t and si g ni fi cant audi t fi ndi ng s, i ncludi ng any signifi cant defi ci enci es i n internal
control tha t  we identify during our audi t.

We al so provi de those charged wi th g overnance wi th a statement that we hav e compli ed wi th rel ev ant
ethi cal requi rements reg ardi ng i ndependence, and to comm uni cate wi th them al l rel ationshi ps and other
matters that m ay reasonabl y be thought t o bear o n our i ndependence, and where appli cable, related
safeg uards.

Repo rt on Other Legal  an d Regulatory Req u irements

1. A s requi red by the C ompani es (A udi tor’s Report) Ord er, 20 20 (“the Order”), i ssued by the C entral
Governme nt of I ndi a i n terms of sub -section (11) of section 143 of t he C ompani es A ct, 2013, we
g i v e i n the “Annexu re A” a statement on the m atters s peci fi ed i n parag raphs 3 and 4 of the Order,
to the exten t appli cable.

2. A s requi red by Section 143(3)  of the  Act, we report tha t:

a) We hav e soug ht and obtai ned al l the i nformation an d expl anations whi ch to the best of our
knowl edg e and bel ief were necessary for the purp o se of our audi t of the aforesaid I nd A S
financial statements;

b) I n our opi ni on, proper books of ac count as requi red by l aw rel ati ng to preparati on of the
aforesai d I nd A S fi nancial statements have been kept so far as i t appears from our exam i na ti on
of those bo oks;

c) The  com pany  does  not  hav e  any  branches.  H ence,  t he  provi si ons  of  section  143(3)(c)  i s  not
appl i cabl e.
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d) The  Balance  Sheet,  the  Statement  of  P rofi t  and  L oss  i ncludi ng  Other  C omprehensive  I ncome,
the  Sta tement of  C hang es  i n  Equi ty  and  the  Sta tement of  C ash  Fl ows  deal t  wi th  by  thi s  Report
are  i n   ag reement  wi th  the  books  of  ac count  m ai ntained  for  the  purpose  of  prep aration  of  I nd
A S Financial  statements;

e) I n our opi ni on, the af oresai d I nd A S fi nancial statements c ompl y wi th the I ndi an ac counting
standards speci fi ed under section 133 of the Act, read wi th Rul e 7 of the C ompani es (A ccounts)
Rules, 2014;

f) I n  our  opi ni on,  there  are  no  fi nancial  transacti ons  or  m atters  whi ch  have  any  adverse  effect  on
the functioning of  the com pany.

g ) On the basi s of written representations re cei ved from the di rectors as on March 31, 2024 ,
taken on record by the Board of Di rectors , none of th e di rectors i s di squal i fi ed as on March 3 1,
2024, from bei ng appointed as a director  i n terms of s ection 164 (2) of  the Act ;

h) There  i s  no  adverse  rem ark  rel ating  to  the  m ai ntenance  of  acco unts  and  other  m at ters
connected  therewith.

i ) Wi th respect t o t he adequacy of t he i nternal fi nancial controls o v er fi nanci al reporting of the
C ompany and the operating effectiveness of such c ontrol s, refer to our separate repor t i n 
“An n exu re B”; and

j) I n our opi ni on and to the bes t of our i nformation an d accordi ng to the ex pl anations g i v en to
us, we report as under wi th respect to other m atters to be i ncluded i n the Audi tor’s Report i n
accordance with  Rul e 11 of  the C ompani es (A udi t and A udi tors) Rules, 2014:

i ) The  C ompany  does  not  have  any  pendi ng  l i tigations  which  would  i m pact  i t s  fi nanci al
posi tion.

i i ) The  C om pany  di d  not  hav e  any  l ong -term  contra cts  i ncludi ng  deri vative  contracts;  as  such
the questi on of  commenting on any materi al foreseeabl e l osses thereon does not arise.

i i i) There  were  no  am oun ts  whi ch  were  requi red  to  be  t ransferred  to  the  I nv estor  Educa tion
and Protection Fun d  by t he C ompany.

i v ) (a)  The  Manag em ent  has  represented  that,  to  the  b est  of  i ts  knowl edg e  and  bel i ef,  no
funds  (w hi ch  are  material  ei ther  i ndi viduall y  or  i n  the  ag g reg ate)  hav e  been  advanced  or
l oaned  or  i nv ested  (ei ther  from  borrowed  funds  or  sh are  p remi u m   or  any  other  sources  or
ki nd  of  fun ds)  by  the  C om pany  to  or  i n  any  o ther  person  or  enti ty,  i ncl udi ng  foreign  entity
(“I ntermedi ari es”),  wi th  the  understanding ,  whether  r ecorded  i n  wri ti ng  or  otherwise,  that
the  I ntermedi ary  shal l ,  whether,  di rectly  or  indi rectly  l end  or  i nvest  i n  other  persons  or
entities  i dentifi ed  i n  any  m anner  whatsoever  by  or  o n  behal f  of  the  C ompany  (“U l timate
Beneficiaries”)  or  provi de  any  g uarantee,  securi ty  or  the  l i ke  on  behal f  of  the  U l ti m ate
Beneficiaries;

(b) The Manag em ent has represented, that , to the best of i ts knowl edg e and bel i ef, n o
funds (w hi ch are m ateri al ei ther i ndividual ly or i n the ag g regate) hav e been recei ved by the
C ompany from any person or entity, i ncl udi ng foreign entity (“Fundi ng Parties”), wi th the
understandi ng , whether recorded i n writing or otherw ise, that t he C om pany shal l , whether ,
di rectly or i ndi rectly , l end or i nvest i n other persons or entities i denti fied i n any m anner
whatsoever by or on behal f of the Fu ndi ng Party (“U l tim a te Benefi ci ari es”) or provi de any
guarantee, security or the  l i ke on behal f of the U l tim ate Beneficiaries;
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(c) Based on the audi t pro cedures that have been co nsi dered reasonabl e and appropriate
i n the ci rcum stances, nothi ng has come to our n otice t hat has caused us to bel i ev e that th e
representations under sub- cla u s e (i ) and (i i ) of Rul e 11(e), as prov i ded under ( a) and (b)
abov e, contain any materi al m i sstatement.

v) A s stated i n N ote 12(vii i ) to the I nd A S fi nancial statements, The C ompany has not
proposed, declared or pai d any i nterim or fi nal di v i dend duri ng the y ear and hence
compl i ance with section 123 of the  A ct i s no t appl i cabl e for the year.

vi ) P roviso to Rul e 3(1) of the C ompani es (Accounts) R ul es, 2014 for m ai ntaini ng books of
account usi ng accou nti ng software which has a feat ure of recordi ng audi t trail (edi t l og)
facil i ty i s appl i cable to the C ompany with effect from A pril 1, 2023, and a ccordi ng l y , the
reporti ng under Rul e 11(g) of C ompani es (A udit and A udi tors) Rul e, 2014 i s appl i cabl e from
A pril 1, 2023.

Based on our ex am i nati on whi ch i ncluded test checks , the company, has used acc ounting
software for m ai ntaini ng i ts books of a ccoun t whi ch has a feature of recordi ng audi t trail
(edi t l og ) facility and the sam e has operated throughout the y ear for al l rel ev ant
transactions rec orded i n the s oftware. Further, duri n g the course of our audi t, we di d not
come across any instance  of audi t trail feature bei ng tampered with.

A s provi so to Rul e 3(1) of the C ompani es (A ccounts) R ul es, 2014 i s appl i cabl e from A pril 1,
2023, reporting u nder Rul e 1 1(g ) of C ompani es (A udi t and A udi tors) Rul es, 2014 on
preservation of audi t trail as per the stat utory requirem ents for recor d reten tion i s n ot
appl i cabl e for the financial y ear ended March 31, 202 4 .

3. Wi th  respect  to  the  o ther  m atters  to  be  i ncl uded  i n  the  A udi tor’s  Report  i n  accor dance  wi th  the
requirements of section 197(16)  of  the Act, as amended:

I n our opi ni on and to the best of our i nformation and accordi ng to the expl anations g i ven to us, the
remuneration pai d by the company to i ts di rect ors duri ng the year i s i n a ccordan ce wi th the
provisi ons of section 197 of the  A ct.

For GMJ & Co  
Cha rtered Accoun tants

FRN: 103429W

Place : Mu mba i
Da te  :  Ap ril 12,  2024

CA Amit Maheshwari 
Pa rtner

M. No.: 428 706
UDIN: 24428 7 06BKFN JY292 4
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ANNEXURE A TO THE INDE PENDENT AUDITOR‘S REPORT
(Referred  to  i n   parag raph  1  under  ‘Report  on  Other  Leg al  and  Reg ulatory  Requi rements’  section  of  our 
report of even date)

i . (a) A . The company has m ai ntained proper records showing ful l parti cul ars i ncludi ng quantitative
detai l s and si tuation of Property, P l ant a nd Equipm ent and rel ev ant detail s of ri g ht-of-use
assets.

B. The company has mai ntained proper records  showing ful l particulars of intangible assets .

(b) The C ompany has a reg ul ar program of phy si cal verification of i ts P roperty, pl ant and Equipm ent
by whi ch P roperty, P l ant and E qui pment are veri fi ed in a phased m anner over a peri od of three
years, whi ch i s reasonable hav i ng reg ard to the si ze of the C om pany and the nature of i ts assets .
Di screpanci es noticed o n su ch physi cal v eri fi cation hav e been properl y deal t wi th i n the books of
account.

(c) The C om pany does not h ol d any i m m ov abl e properti es (other than pr operties where the
company i s t he l esse e and the l ease ag reem ents are dul y executed i n favour of the l esse e) as at
March 31 , 20 24, therefore the prov i si ons of clause3 (c)(i ) of the C om pani es (A uditor's Report)
Order, 20 20 i s no t appli cable to t he C ompany.

(d) I n our opi ni on an d a ccording to t he i nformation and expl anations g i v en to us, the company has
not reval ued i ts P roperty, Pl ant and Equipm ent (i ncl udi ng Ri g ht of use assets) and i ntangi bl e
assets or both duri ng the y ear. Therefore the pr ov i si ons of clause 3(d)(i ) of the C ompani es
(A udi tor's Report) Order, 2020 i s not ap pl i cabl e to the  C om pany.

(e) A ccording to the i nformation and expl anations g i ve n to us and on the basi s of our exami nation of
the records of the company, no proceeding s hav e been i ni tiated or are pendi ng ag ai nst the
company duri ng the year for hol di ng any benam i property under the Benami Transactions
(P rohi bi ti on) act, 198 8 and r ul es  made thereunder.

i i . (a) A ccordi ng  to  the  i nformati on  and  expl anations  g i v en  to  us ,  the  m anag em ent  has  con ducted
physi cal  v eri fi cation  of  i nventory  at  reasonabl e  i nterval s  duri ng  the  y ear.  I n  our  opi ni on  the 
coverag e  and  the  procedure  of  such  v eri fi cati on  by  the  m anag ement  i s  appropriate. 
Di screpancies  of  10%  or  m ore  i n  aggregate  for  each  class  of  i nventory  were  not  noti ced  on  such 
physi cal veri fi cati on.

(b) A ccordi ng  to  the  i nformation  and  expl anations given  to  us  and  on  the  basi s  of  our  exam i nation  of
the  records  of  the  com pany,  duri ng  any  poi nt  of  time  of  the  year,  the  company  has  no t  been
sanctioned  worki ng  capital  lim i ts  i n  excess  of  fi v e  crore  rupees,  i n  ag g regate,  from  banks  or
financial  i nstitutions  on  t he  basi s  of  security  of  cur rent  assets.  A ccording l y,  reporti ng  under
cl ause 3 (i i )(b) of the Order i s no t appl i cabl e to t he C om pany.
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i i i. According  to  the  i nformation  and  expl anations gi ven  to  us  and  on  the  basi s  of  our  ex am i nati on  of
the  records  of  the  C om pany, the  C om pany  has  not prov i ded  any  guarantee  or  security  or  granted
any  l oans  or  advances  i n  the  nat ure  of  l oans,  secured  or  unsecure d,  to  compani es,  fi rms,  l i m i ted
li ability  partnership  or  any  other  parti es  duri ng  the  year.  The  C ompany  had  m ade  i nvestment i n  a 
Forei g n  C ompany.  The  C om pany  has  not  m a d e   any  i nv estments  i n  fi rms  and  l imited  l i ability
partnershi p.

(a) Based on the audi t pro cedures carried on by us an d as per the i nformation and ex pl anations
g i v en to us, the C ompany has no t pr ov i ded l oans a nd advances i n the nature of l oans , any
guarantee and security to any other entity. Theref ore, clause 3( iii) ( a) ( A) & 3( iii) ( a) ( B) ar e n ot
applicable to the  C ompany.

(b) A ccordi ng  to  the  i nformation  and  expl anations  g i v en  to  us  and  based  on  the  audi t  procedures
conduc ted  by  us,  i n  our  opi ni on  the  company  has  n ot  m ade  any  i nvestment  duri ng  the  year  and
the  i nvestments  m ade  earli er, are  pri m a   facie  not prejudi ci al  to  the  i nterest  of  the  C ompany.  The
C ompany  has  not  provi ded  any  guarantee  or  security  or  g ranted  any  l oans  or  advances  i n  the
nature of l oans duri ng the year.

Accordi ng to the i nformation and expl anations gi ven to us and on the basi s of our exam i nation of
the records of t he C om pany, the C ompany has not g ranted any loans or advances i n the nature of
l oans duri ng the year. Therefore, cl ause 3 (i i i )(c) ,(d),(e) and (f) are no t appl i cabl e to t he C o m pany.

i v . According  to  the  i nformation  and  expl anation  g i v en  to  us,  during  the  y ear,  the  company  has  no t
granted  any  l oans  or  provi ded  any  g uarantees  or  security  to  the  parties  covered  under  section
185  of  the  C ompani es  A ct,  20 13.  The  C omp a n y   has  c ompl i ed  wi th  the  provisi ons  of  se ction  185
and 186 of the  A ct to t he extent appl i cabl e.

v. I n  our  opi ni on,  and  a ccordi ng  to  the  i nformation  and  expl anations  g i ven  to  us ,  t he  C ompany  has
not  a ccepted  any  deposi ts  or  there  i s   no  am oun t  whi c h  has  been  co nsi dered  as  deem ed  deposi t
wi thin  the  m eani ng  of  sec ti ons  73  to  76  of  the  A ct  and  the  C om pani es  (Acceptance  of
Deposi ts)Rul es,  2014  (as  amended).  A cc ordi ng l y ,  reporti ng  under  clause  3(v)  of  the  Order  i s  no t
appl i cabl e to the C ompany.

vi . According  to  the  i nformati on  and  expl anation  given  to  us ,  The  C entral  Governme nt  has  not

prescribed  the  m ai ntenance  of  cost  records  under  section  148(1)  of  the  C ompani es  A ct,  2013  for

the  nature  of  the  C ompany’s  b usi ness  /  acti vi ti es.  Therefore,  reporting  under  cl ause  3(vi )  of  the

Order i s not appl i cabl e.

vi i. (a) A ccordi ng  to  the  i nformation  and  expl anation  g iven  to  us  and  on  the  basi s  of  our  exam i nation  of
the  records  of  the  C ompany ,  i n  respect  of  un di sputed  statut ory  dues  includi ng  Goods  and 
Services  Tax,  provi dent  fund,  empl oyees'  state  i nsurance,  i ncome -tax,  sal es -tax,  service  tax,  duty 
of  customs,  d uty  of  exci se,  v al ue  added  tax,  cess  an d  any  other  statu tory  dues  hav e  g eneral l y 
been regul arly deposi ted wi th the appropriate authori t i es.

Accordi ng to the i nformation and expl anations g i v en to us, no undi sputed am ounts payabl e i n
respect of the aforesaid dues were i n arrears as at M arch 31 , 2024 for a peri od of m ore than si x
months from the da te they became payabl e .

(b) A ccordi ng to the i nformati on and expl anations g iven to us, t here hav e been no di sputed dues
whi ch  have  not  been  deposited  i n  respect  of G oods and Servi ces Tax, provi dent fund ,
empl oyees'  state  i nsurance,  i ncome -tax,  sal es-tax,  service  tax,  duty  of  customs ,  duty  of  excise,
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val ue added tax, cess and  any other s tatut ory dues  as  at March  31,  20 24.

vi ii. According  to  the  i nformation  and  ex pl anations gi ven  to  us  and  on  the  basi s   of  our  exam i natio n   of
the  records  of  the  C ompany ,  the  C ompany  has  not  s urrendered  or  di scl osed  any  transactions,
previ ously  unrecorded  as  i ncome  i n  the  books  of  account ,  i n  the  tax  assessm ents  under  the
Income Tax Act, 1961 as i ncome duri ng the year.

i x. (a) A ccordi ng  to  the  i nformati on  and  expl anations given  to  us  and  on  the  basi s  of  our  exam i nation  of
the  records  of  the  C ompany,  duri ng  the  y ear  the  C om pany  di d  not  hav e  any  l oans  or  other 
borrowi ng s  from  fi nancial  Institutions  and  Government.  The  C ompany  has  not  defaulted  i n  the 
repayment  of  l oans  or  other  borrowi ng s,  or  i n   the  p aym e n t   of  interest  thereon  to  Banks  and 
other Lenders duri ng the year .

(b) A ccordi ng to the i nformation and ex pl anations g i v en to us and on t he basi s of our audi t
procedures, we report tha t the company has not bee n decl ared wi l ful defaul ter by any bank or
financial  i nsti tuti on or governme nt or any governme nt authority .

(c) According to the i nformati on and ex pl anations gi ven to us and on the basi s of our exam i nation of
the records of t he C ompany , the company has uti l i zed the m oney ob tai ned by way of term l oans
during the year for the purp oses for which  they were obtained.

(d) According  to  the  i nformati on  and  expl anations  given  to  us,  and  the  procedures  performed  by  us,
and  on  an  overal l  exam i nation  of  the  I nd  A S  Fi nancial  statements  of  the  company, we  report  that
no funds raised on shor t-term basi s hav e been used fo r long -term purposes by the company.

(e) A ccording  to  the  i nformation  and  expl anations  g i ven  to  us  and  on  an  overal l  exam i natio n   of  the
I nd  A S  Fi nancial  statements  of  the  C ompany,  we  report  tha t  the  C om pany  has  not  taken  any
funds  from  any  entity  or  person  on  acco unt  of  or  to  m ee t  the  obl i g ations  of  i ts  subsi di a ries  as
defi ned  under  the  Act.  The  C ompany  does  not  hol d  any  i nv estment  i n  any  associ ate  or  joi nt
venture (as defi ned under the Act) d uri ng the year ended March 3 1, 2024.

(f) A ccordi ng  to  the  i nformati on  and  expl anations  g i ven  to  us  and  pro cedures  performed  by  us,  we
report  tha t  the  C ompany  has  no t  rai sed  l oans  during  t he  y ear  on  the  pl edg e  of  securiti es  hel d  i n
i ts  subsi di ari es  (as  defi ned  under  the  A ct).  The  C ompany  does  not  hol d  any  i nvestment  i n  any
associates or joi nt venture (as  defi ned under the Act)  d uri ng the year ended March 3 1, 2024.

x. (a) A ccordi ng  to  the  i nformati on  and  expl anations  g i v en  to  us  and  based  on  the  recor ds  and
docum ents  produced  before  us,  duri ng  the  y ear  the  com pany  has  not  rai sed  m oney  by  way  of 
ini tial  publ i c offer  or  further  publ i c offer  (i ncl udi ng  de bt i nstruments),  therefore,  cl ause  3(x)(a)  of 
the Order i s no t appl i cabl e to the  C om pany.

(b) Accordi ng to the i nformation and expl anations given to us and on the basi s of our exam i natio n of
the records of the C ompany , the C ompany has m a de ri g ht i ssue/ al l otment of 60 ,00,000 0%
Optional l y Ful l y C onvertibl e Debentures (OFC Ds) of Rs. 10/ - each am oun ting to I N R 6 0 0 Lakhs
during the y ear under revi ew . The requirem ents of section 62 of the C ompani es A ct, 201 3 hav e
been compl i ed wi th to the extent appl i cable. The company has uti l i zed funds rai sed by way of
OFC Ds for the p urposes for whi ch  they were raised i n duri ng the year.

xi . (a) Based  on  exam i nation  of  the  books  and  records  of  the  C ompany  and  a ccordi ng  to  the
i nformati on  and  expl anati ons  given  to  us,  consi deri ng  the  pri nci pl es  of  materiality  as  outl i ned  i n  
the  Standards  on  A udi ting , we  report that no  fraud  by  the  C ompany  or  on  the  C ompany  has  been 
noticed or repor ted during the c our se of  the audit.

(b)  According  to  the  i nformation  and  expl anations  g i v en  to  us,  no  report  under  Se ction  143( 12)  of
the  A ct  has  been  fi l ed  by  the  au di tors  i n  Form  A DT -4  as  prescribed  under  rul e  13  of  C ompani es

Cover Story Clothing Limited | 9



(A udi t and Audi tors) Rules, 2014 with  the C entral  Government.

(c) According  to  the  i nformati on  and  expl anations  g iven  to  us,  the  establ i s h m e n t   of  whi stle  blower
mechanis m  i s not mandatory for the  company.

xi i.  A s  the  company  i s  not  a  N i dhi  C ompany  and  the  Nidhi  Rul es,  2014  are  not  appl i cabl e  to  i t,
therefore the prov i si ons of cl ause 3(xi i ) of the  Order is not appl i cabl e to the  com pany.

xi ii . On  the  basi s   of  exami nation  of  records  and  docum ents  and  the  i nformation  and  expl anation
g i v en  to  us  al l  transactions  wi th  the  related  par ties  are  i n  com pl i ance  wi th  section  188  of  the
C ompani es  A ct,  201 3.  The  details  of  such  rel ated  par ty  transac ti ons  hav e  been  di sclosed  i n  the
I nd  A S  financial  statem ents  as  requi red  un der  I ndi an  Accoun ting  Standard  (I nd  A S)  24 ,  Rel ated
Party  Di s closures  specifi ed  under  secti on  13 3  of  th e  A ct  read  wi th  the  rel ev ant  rul es  i ssued
thereunder. Refer Note 34 of  the I nd A S financial state ments.

xi v . I n our opi ni on and based on o ur exam i natio n, the co m pany i s not requi red to hav e an i nternal
audi t system as per prov i si ons of the section 138 of the C om pani es A ct 20 13. Therefore clause
3(xi v ) of the Order i s not appl i cable to the  com pany.

xv . A ccordi ng  to  the  i nformation  and  expl anations  g i v en  to  us,  i n  our  opi ni on  duri ng  the  y ear  the
company  has  not  entered  i nto  any  non-cash  transacti ons  wi th  i ts  di rectors  or  persons  connected
wi th  i ts  di rectors  and  hence  provi si ons  of  section  192  of  the  C ompani es  A ct,  2013  are  not
appl i cabl e to the C ompany.

xv i . (a)      The  C om pany  i s  not  requi red  to  be  regi stered  under  section  45 -I A  of  the  Reserve  Bank  of  I ndi a
A ct, 19 34. A ccordi ng l y, cl ause 3(xv i )(a) of the Order is  not appl i cabl e to the  C ompany.

(b) The C ompany has not condu cted no n -banki ng fi nancial / housi ng fi nance activi ties duri ng the
year. A ccordi ngly, the reporting under Clause 3(xvi)(b ) of the Order i s not appl i cabl e to the
C ompany.

(c) The C ompany i s not a C ore I nv estment C ompany (CI C ) as defi ned i n the regul ati ons m ade by the
Reserve Bank of I ndi a. According l y , the reporti ng u nder C l ause 3(xv i )(c) of the Order i s not
appl i cabl e to the C o m pany.

(d) Based on t he i nformation and  expl anations provi ded by the manag ement of  the C ompany ,  duri ng
the  course  of  audi t,  the  C ompany  or  i ts  subsi di ary  (as  per  the  provi si ons  of  the  C ore  I nv estment
C ompani es (Reserve Bank) Di rections, 2016) does n ot hav e an y C IC.

xv i i. The  c ompany  has  i ncurred  cash  l osses  amounting  to  Rs.  6,428.59  Lakhs  during  t he  fi nanci al  y ear
covered by our audi t and  Rs. 4,0 77.43  Lakhs i n the immedi ately preceding fi nancial year.

xv i ii . There  has  been  no  resi g nation  of  the  statut ory  aud i tors  duri ng  t he  y ear.  A ccordingly,  clause
3(xv i ii) of the order i s not appli cable to the C ompany.

xi x. Accordi ng to  the  i nformati on and  expl anations gi ven t o  us  and  on  the  basi s of  the  fi nanci al rati os,
ag ei ng  and  expected  da tes  of  reali sati on  of  fi nanci al  assets  and  paym ent  of  fi nanci al  l i abil i ti es,
other  i nformati on  accompanyi ng  the  I nd  A S  fi nanci al  state ments,  our  kn owl edg e  of  the  Board  of
Directors  and  m anag ement  pl ans  and  based  on  our  exam i nation  of  the  evi dence  suppor ting  the
assumptions,  nothi ng  has  come  to  our  attention,  wh i ch  causes  us  to  beli eve  that  any  m ateri al
uncertainty  exi sts  as  on  the  date  of  the  audi t  report  t hat  C ompany  i s  not  capabl e  of  m eeting  i ts
l i abil i ti es  exi sti ng  at  t he  date  of  bal ance  sheet  as  and  when  they  fal l  due  wi thin  a  peri od  of  one
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year from the bal ance sheet da te. We, however, s ta te tha t thi s i s not an assurance as to the
future vi abi lity of the C ompany. We further state that our reporti ng i s based on the facts up to
the date of the audi t report and we nei ther g i v e any guarantee nor any assurance that al l
l i abil i ti es fall i ng due wi thin a peri od of one year from the bal ance s heet date, wi l l g et di scharged
by the C ompany as and when they fal l due.

Accordi ng  to  the  i nformation  and  expl anations given  to  us  and  on  the  basi s  of  our  exam i nation  of 
xx . the  records  of  the  C ompany ,  Sec tion  13 5  of  the  C o m pani es  A ct,  201 3  i s   no t  appl i cabl e  to  the

company. Therefore, clause 3(xx)(a) & (b) of  the  Order  i s not appl i cabl e to the C ompany.

For GMJ  & Co  
Cha rtered Accoun tants

FRN: 103429W

Place : Mu mba i
Da te  : April 12,  2024

CA Amit Maheshwari 
Pa rtner

M. No.: 428 706
UDIN: 24428 7 06BKFN JY292 4
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ANNEXURE B TO THE INDE PENDENT AUDITOR‘S REPORT
(Report on t he Internal Fi nancial C ontrol s under C l ause (i ) of Sub -section 3 of Sec tion 14 3 of  the C ompani es 

A ct, 20 13 (“ the Act”))

We have audited the internal fi nanci al controls over fi nanci al reporti ng of “ Cover S tory Clothing Limited
(Formerly kno wn a s Future S tyle Lab Limited) ” ("the C ompany") as of March 31 , 20 24 i n conju nction wi th
our audi t of  the I nd AS fi nancial statements of  the C o m p a n y  for the year ended on  that date.

Man a gement’s Responsibility f o r Interna l Financial Co ntrols

The C ompany ’s m anag ement i s responsi bl e for establi shi ng and m ai ntaining inter nal financial controls
based on the internal control over fi nanci al reporting criteria establ i shed by the C ompany consi deri ng the
esse ntial components of internal control s tated i n the Guidance Note on A udi t of Internal Fi nancial C ontrol s
ov er Fi nanci al Re porti ng i ssued by t he I nsti tute of C hartered Acc ountants of I ndi a (‘IC A I ’). These
responsi bi liti es include the desi g n, i m plementation and mai ntenance of adequa te internal fi nancial controls
that were operati ng effectivel y for ensuri ng the orderl y and effi c i ent conduct of i ts busi ness, i ncludi ng
adherence to company’s poli cies, the safeg uarding of its assets, the prevention and dete cti on of frauds and
errors, the ac curacy and c ompl eteness of the accou nting records, and the ti m el y preparati on of reliable
fi nancial i nformation, as required under the C ompani es Act, 2013.

Au ditors’ Responsibility

Our responsi bi l i ty i s to express an opi ni on on the C ompany 's internal fi nanci al control s over fi nancial
reporti ng based on our audi t. We condu cted our audi t i n a ccordan ce wi th the Guidance N ote on A udi t of
Internal Fi nancial C ontrols over Fi nancial Reporti ng (t he “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on A udi ti ng ,
i ssued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the C ompani es A ct, 2013, to the
extent appli cable to an audi t of i nternal fi nanci al con t rol s, bot h appl i cable t o an audi t of Interna l Fi nancial
C ontrols and b oth i ssued by the I nstitute of C harte red A ccoun tants of I ndi a. Those S tandards and the
Guidance Note requi re that we compl y wi th ethi cal re qui rements and pl an and perform the audi t t o ob tai n
reasonabl e assurance abou t whet her adeq uate i nte rnal fi nanci al controls over financial reporting was
establi shed and mai ntained and i f such control s operat ed effectiv el y i n all materi al respects.

Our audi t i nvol v es performi ng procedures to o btai n audi t evi dence about the adequa cy of the i nter nal
financial control s system over fi nanci al reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
financial controls ov er financial reporting i ncluded ob t ai ni ng an understanding of i nternal fi nanci al con trol s
ov er fi nanci al reporti ng , assessi ng the ri sk that a m ateri al weakness exi sts and testing and ev al uati ng the
desi g n and operating effecti veness of i nternal con trol based on the assesse d ri sk. The pr ocedures sel ected
depend on the audi tor’s judg ment, i ncl udi ng the asse ssm ent of the ri sks of m ateri al m i sstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to  fraud or  error.

We bel i eve that the  audi t evidence we have ob tai ned i s sufficient and appro pri ate to  prov i de a basi s for  our 
audi t opi ni on on the C ompany’s internal fi nanci al cont rol s sys tem over fi nanci al reporting.

Mean ing of Interna l Finan cial Co ntrols ov er Financial Reporting

A company's i nternal financial control ov er fi nanci al reporti ng i s a process designed to provi de reasonable
assurance reg ardi ng the rel i abi lity of fi nanci al re porti ng and the preparation of fi nanci al statements for
external purposes i n accordance wi th g eneral l y accepted accoun ti ng pri ncipl es. A company's internal
financial control over financial reporting i ncl udes those pol i ci es and procedures that

(1) P ertai n  to  the  mai ntenance  of  records  that,  i n  reasonabl e  detail ,  accurately  and  fai rl y  reflect  the
transactions and  di spositions of the assets  of the  com p any;
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(2) P rovi de reasonabl e assurance that transactions a re recorded as ne cessary to perm i t preparati on of
financial statements i n accordance wi th g eneral l y accepted ac counting principl es, and that recei pts and
expenditures of the company are bei ng m ade onl y i n accordance wi th authorizations of m anag em ent and
di rectors of the  company; and

(3) Provi de reasonabl e assurance regarding preventi on or  ti m el y detection of unau thorized acqui si tion, use,
or disposition of the  company's assets tha t c oul d hav e a materi al effect on the fi nanci al statements.

Inh erent Limitations of Interna l Financial Co ntrols Over Fina nc ial Reporting

Because of the i nherent l i mi tations of i nternal financial controls over fi nancial reporting , i ncludi ng the
possi bi lity of coll usi on or i m proper m anag em ent override of control s, m ateri al m i sstatem ents due to error
or fraud m ay occur and not be de tected. A l so, pro jecti ons of any ev al uati on of the i nternal fi nancial
control s over fi nancial reporti ng to future peri ods are subject to the ri sk that the i nternal financial control
ov er fi nanci al reporti ng may become i nadequate bec ause of changes i n conditions, or that t he deg ree of
compl i ance with the poli cies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

I n our opi ni on, the C ompany has, i n al l m ateri al respects, an adequate i nternal fi nanci al con trol s system
ov er fi nanci al reporting and such i nternal f i nancial contr ol s over fi nanci al reporti ng were operating
effecti vel y as at March 31, 20 24, based on the internal control over fi nanci al reporting criteria establi shed
by the C omp a n y consi deri ng the esse ntial components of i nternal c ontrol s tated i n the Gu i dance N ote on
A udi t of I nternal Fi nancial C ontrol s Ov er Financial Reporti ng i ssued by the I nstitute of C hartered
Accountants  of I ndi a.

For GMJ  & Co  
Cha rtered Accoun tants

FRN: 103429W

Place : Mu mba i
Da te  : April 12,  2024

CA Amit Maheshwari 
Pa rtner

M. No.: 428 706
UDIN: 24428 7 06BKFN JY292 4
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(Amount in INR Lakhs)

 ASSETS 
 Non-Current Assets 

 (a) Property, Plant and Equipment 4 6,255.05 2,016.60 
 (b) Other Intangible Assets 5 199.55 2.18 
 (c) Intangible Assets Under Development 5A - 63.72 
 (d) Financial Assets

 (i) Investments 6A 0.09 0.09 
 (ii) Other Financial Assets 6C 472.98 565.92 

 (e) Other Non-Current Assets 11 27.55 5.81 
 Total Non-Current Assets 6,955.22 2,654.32 
 Current assets 

 (a) Inventories 7 1,638.52 2,589.86 
 (b) Financial Assets

 (i) Trade Receivables 8 1,370.42 1,448.18 
 (ii) Cash and Cash Equivalents 9 36.39 113.90 
 (iii) Bank Balances Other than (ii) above 10 247.41 231.90 
 (iv) Investment 6B - 1,013.88 
 (v) Other Financial Assets 6C 373.61 655.83 

 (c) Other Current Assets 11 2,473.37 1,303.51 
 Total Current Assets 6,139.72 7,357.06  
TOTAL ASSETS 13,094.94 10,011.38 

 EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 
 Equity 

 (a) Equity Share capital 12 829.04 829.04 
 (b) Other Equity 13 (407.28) 5,241.77 

 Total Equity 421.76 6,070.81  
 Liabilities 
 Non Current Liabilities 

 (a) Financial Liabilities
 (i) Borrowings 14 1,945.00 - 
 (ii) Lease Liabilities 16 4,196.40 1,242.25 

 (b) Provisions 19 88.82 81.33 

 Total Non-Current Liabilities 6,230.22 1,323.58  
 Current Liabilities 

 (a) Financial Liabilities
 (i) Borrowings 14 159.78 - 
 (ii) Lease Liabilities 16 1,175.46 363.87 
 (iii) Trade Payables

 Total outstanding dues of Micro enterprises and Small enterprises 17 411.66 263.46 
 Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and 
small enterprises 

17 2,338.77 1,087.66 

 (iv) Other Financial Liabilities 15 1,314.35 832.49 
 (b) Other Current Liabilities 18 1,036.39 66.65 
 (c)  Provisions 19 6.55 2.86 

 Total Current Liabilities 6,442.96 2,616.99 
 TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 13,094.94 10,011.38 

Material Accounting Policies and Notes Forming Part of the Financial Statements 1 to 44

COVER STORY CLOTHING LIMITED (Formerly known as Future Style Lab Limited)
BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2024

Particulars Note No.
 As at 

March 31, 2024 
 As at 

March 31, 2023 
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Cover Story Clothing Limited 
(Formerly known as Future Style Lab Limited) 

As per our Report of even date For and on behalf of the Board 

For GMJ & Co. Akhilesh Prasad 

Chartered Accountants Director 

Firm Registration No.103429W DIN: 01757265 

CA Amit Maheshwari Manjula Tiwari 

Partner Managing Director 

Membership No: 428706 DIN: 00548450 

Date: April 12, 2024 
Vineeth Nair 
Director 
DIN: 03530224 
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024
(Amount in INR Lakhs)

INCOME
Value of Sales 8,611.96   5,817.26   
Less: GST Recovered 944.85  603.68   

Revenue from Operations 20 7,667.11   5,213.58   
Other income 21 771.43  49.97   

Total Income (I) 8,438.54   5,263.55   

EXPENSES
Purchases of stock-in-trade 22 5,629.93   5,009.48   
Changes in inventories of Stock-in-Trade 23 631.91  
Employee benefits expense 24 1,955.13   2,959.01   
Finance costs 25 689.34  372.64   
Depreciation and amortization expense 26 1,553.06   993.90   
Other expenses 27 4,725.67   3,553.51   

Total Expenses (II) 15,185.04   10,925.05  

Profit/(Loss) before exceptional items and tax (I-II) (6,746.50) (5,661.50)

Exceptional Items
Impairment gain -   (312.90)

Profit/(Loss) before tax (6,746.50) (5,348.60)

Tax expense:
Current tax -  -  
Adjustment of tax relating to earlier periods -  -  
Deferred tax (0.15) 3.01  

Profit/(loss) for the period (6,746.35) (5,351.61)

Other Comprehensive income to be reclassified to profit and loss in subsequent periods:

Remeasurement of gains (losses) on defined benefit plans 0.60  (11.59)
Income tax effect (0.15) 3.01  

Other Comprehensive income/loss for the year (net of tax) 0.45   (8.58)

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE LOSS FOR THE PERIOD (NET OF TAX) (6,745.90) (5,360.19)

Earnings per share for profit attributable to equity shareholders
Basic EPS 28 (81.38) (86.71)
Diluted EPS 28 (81.38) (86.71)

Material Accounting Policies and Notes Forming Part of the Financial Statements 1 to 44

COVER STORY CLOTHING LIMITED (Formerly known as Future Style Lab Limited)

Particulars

(1,963.49)

Note No.  2023-24  2022-23 
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COVER STORY CLOTHING LIMITED (Formerly known as Future Style Lab Limited)
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

A.   Equity Share Capital
(Amount in INR Lakhs)

Number  Amount Number Amount
Balance at the beginning of the year               82,90,366 829.04                          16,63,555              166.36                             
Changes in equity share capital due to prior period errors                             -                                      -   -                          -                                    
Restated balance at the beginning of the year 82,90,366              829.04                          16,63,555              166.36                             
Changes in equity share capital during the year                             -                                      -   66,26,811              662.68                             
Balance at the end of the year 82,90,366              829.04                          82,90,366              829.04                             

B.  Other Equity (Amount in INR Lakhs)

Particulars Optionally Fully 
Convertible 

Debentures (OFCD)

Equity Component of 
Compound financial 
instruments (OCD)

 Securities 
Premium  

 Share Based Payment 
Reserve 

 Retained 
Earnings 

 Total 

As at March 31, 2022* -                           609.90                        3,835.08               49.36                           (20,416.12)            (15,921.78)                      
Loss for the period -                           (5,351.61)              (5,351.61)                        
Other comprehensive income -                           -                               -                         -                                (8.58)                      (8.58)                                
Total comprehensive income for the year -                           -                               -                         -                                (5,360.19)              (5,360.19)                        

Issued during the year 2,200.00                  -                               -                         -                                -                         2,200.00                         
Others -                               -                         -                                (181.31)                 (181.31)                           
Conversion in Equity/share issued during the year (609.90)                       25,114.95             24,505.05                       
Share based payments (Employee Stock Option) -                           -                               -                         (49.36)                          49.36                     -                                   

As at March 31, 2023* 2,200.00                  (0.00)                           28,950.03             -                                (25,908.26)            5,241.77                         
Loss for the period -                           -                               -                         -                                (6,746.35)              (6,746.35)                        
Other comprehensive income -                           -                               -                         -                                0.45                       0.45                                 
Total comprehensive income for the year -                           -                               -                         -                                (6,745.90)              (6,745.90)                        

Issued during the year 600.00                     -                               -                         -                                -                         600.00                             
Conversion in Equity/share issued during the year -                           -                               -                         -                                -                         -                                   
Share based payments (Employee Stock Option) -                           -                               -                         496.85                         -                         496.85                             

As at March 31, 2024* 2,800.00                  (0.00)                           28,950.03             496.85                         (32,654.16)            (407.28)                           

1 to 44Material Accounting Policies and Notes Forming Part of the Financial Statements

* There are no changes in other equity due to prior period errors

Particulars

Reserves and Surplus

As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
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COVER STORY CLOTHING LIMITED (Formerly known as Future Style Lab Limited)
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

(Amount in INR Lakhs)

Loss before income tax: (6,746.50) (5,348.60)

Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation expense 1,553.06   993.90  
Gain on Financial Assets (9.94) (5.93)
Provision for Doubtful Debt 5.00  617.80  
Provision for GST -  312.89  
Impairment Gain -  (312.90)
Financial assets at amortised cost (57.76) (15.37)
Finance costs 689.34  372.64  
Share based payments to employees 496.84  -  
Sundry Balance written back (618.17) (0.62)
Assets written off 24.11  449.02  
Non Cash Item 684.25  -  
Foreign Exchange loss 6.68  26.71  
Interest Income (17.23) (19.68)

Change in operating assets and liabilities:
(Increase)/Decrease in trade receivables 690.93  (1,088.36)
(Increase)/Decrease in inventories 1,009.13   (1,867.76)
Increase/(Decrease) in trade payables 1,392.64   (3,779.68)
Decrease/(Increase) in other financial assets 375.16  88.59  
(Increase)/decrease in other assets (1,550.38) (241.18)
Increase/(Decrease) in provisions 11.80  5.91
Increase/(Decrease) in other financial liabilities 481.86  (1,253.47)
Increase/(Decrease) in other liabilities 969.74  (5,996.29)

Cash generated from operations (609.44) (17,062.38)
Less: Income taxes paid (21.74) -  
Net cash inflow from operating activities (587.70) (17,062.38)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:

Acquisition for property, plant and equipment (1,432.45) (35.06)
(Investment in Securities)/Realisation on sale of Securities 1,023.82 (1,007.95)
Investment in Bank FD -  -  
Interest received 17.23 19.68

Net cash outflow from investing activities (391.40) (1,023.33)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Proceeds from issues of shares - 21,034.63
Proceeds from OFCD 600.00 2,200.00
Receipt/(Repayment) of borrowings (Net) 2,104.78 (3,705.85)
Payment of lease liabilities (1,626.71) (982.81)
Interest paid (160.97) (372.64)

Net cash inflow (outflow) from financing activities 917.10  18,173.33  

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (62.00) 87.62
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the financial year 345.80 258.18

Cash and Cash Equivalents at end of the period / year 283.80  345.80  
Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents as per the cash flow statement:
Cash and cash equivalents as per above comprise of the following:

Balances with banks on current accounts 24.98  109.91  
Cash on hand 11.41  3.99  
Bank deposits with more than 12 months maturity 247.41  231.90  

Balances per statement of cash flows 283.80  345.80  
Note : 
The above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the “Indirect Method” as set out in the Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS-7) -
Statement of Cash Flow.

 2023-24  2022-23  Particulars 
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1   Corporate Information

2   Material Accounting Policies

2.1   Basis of preparation

2.2   Summary of material accounting policies

(a) Foreign currency translation
(i) Functional and presentation currency

(ii) Transactions and balances

(b) Property, plant and equipment

Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives and residual value

These statements comprise financial statements of Cover Story Clothing Limited (Formerly known as Future Style Lab Limited) 
(CIN: U74999MH2015PLC266355) for the year ended March 31, 2024. The Company incorporated in India having its registered office at 4th floor, Court House,
Lokmanya Tilak Marg, Dhobi Talao Mumbai 400002.

The Company is engaged in the business of Retailing of Fashion products across the country. The Company’s immediate holding Company is Reliance Retail
Ventures Limited and Ultimate holding Company is Reliance Industries Limited.

The financial statements of the company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended) as amended by the Companies(Indian Accounting Standards)(Amendment) Rules, 2016 and the relevant
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act").

COVER STORY CLOTHING LIMITED (Formerly known as Future Style Lab Limited)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

The Company’s Financial Statements are presented in Indian Rupees (₹), which is also its functional currency and all values are rounded to the nearest lakhs
(₹00,000), except when otherwise indicated.

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at year
end exchange rates are generally recognised in profit or loss.

Foreign exchange differences regarded as an adjustment to borrowing costs are presented in the statement of profit and loss, within finance costs. All other
foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in the statement of profit and loss on a net basis within other gains/(losses).

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was
determined. Translation differences on assets and liabilities carried at fair value are reported as part of the fair value gain or loss.

Items included in the financial statements of the entity are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity operates (‘the
functional currency’). The financial statements are presented in Indian rupee (INR), which is entity’s functional and presentation currency.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to acquisition of property, plant and equipment which take substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use are
also included to the extent they relate to the period till such assets are ready to be put to use.

Advances paid towards the acquisition of Property, plant and equipment are disclosed as “Capital advances” under Other Non Current Assets and the cost of
assets not ready to be put to use as at the balance sheet date are disclosed as 'Capital work-in-progress'.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognized is de-recognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset) is included in the income statement when the Property, plant and equipment is de-recognized.

The Company has elected to continue with the carrying value for all of its property, plant and equipment as recognised in the financial statements on transition
to Ind AS, measured as per the previous GAAP and use that as its deemed cost as at the date of transition.

Depreciation is calculated on straight line basis using the useful lives estimated by the management, which are equal to those prescribed under Schedule II to the
Companies Act, 2013.

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Freehold land are stated at cost.
The cost comprises purchase price, borrowing costs if capitalization criteria are met and directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for
the intended use. Any trade discounts and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase price.

Each part of an item of property, plant and equipment with a cost that is significant in relation to the total cost of the item is depreciated separately. When
significant parts of plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Company depreciates them separately based on their specific useful lives.
Likewise, when a major inspection is performed, its cost is recognized in the carrying amount of the plant and equipment as a replacement if the recognition
criteria are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognized in profit or loss as incurred.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with the item will flow to the entity and the cost can be measured reliably. All other expenses on existing property, plant and equipment,
including day-to-day repair and maintenance expenditure and cost of replacing parts, are charged to the statement of profit and loss for the period during which
such expenses are incurred. 
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COVER STORY CLOTHING LIMITED (Formerly known as Future Style Lab Limited)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

(c) Intangible assets

Computer software

Amortisation methods and periods

(d) Impairment of non financial assets

(e) Leases

As a lessee

 -      management intends to complete the software and use it
 -      there is an ability to use the software
 -      it can be demonstrated how the software will generate probable future economic benefits
 -      adequate technical, financial and other resources to complete the development and to use the software are available, and
 -      the expenditure attributable to the software during its development can be reliably measured.

Intangible assets comprising of computer software are amortized on a straight line basis over the useful life of six years which is estimated by the management.

The property, plant and equipment acquired under finance leases is depreciated over the asset’s useful life or over the shorter of the asset’s useful life and the
lease term if there is no reasonable certainty that the company will obtain ownership at the end of the lease term. Leashold Improvements are amortised on a
straight line basis over the balance period of lease.

The residual values are not more than 5% of the original cost of the asset.

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period. An asset’s carrying amount is written
down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

Intangible Assets are stated at acquisition cost, net of accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Gains or losses arising from the
retirement or disposal of an intangible asset are determined as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and
recognised as income or expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Costs associated with maintaining software programmes are recognised as an expense as incurred. Development costs that are directly attributable to the design
and testing of identifiable and unique software products controlled by the company are recognised as intangible assets when the following criteria are met:

 -      it is technically feasible to complete the software so that it will be available for use

The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement date to the earlier of the end of the useful life of the
right-of-use asset or the end of the lease term. The estimated useful lives of right-of-use assets are determined on the same basis as those of property and
equipment. Right of- use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term.In addition, the right-of-use asset is periodically
reduced by impairment losses, if any, and adjusted for certain re-measurements of the lease liability.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the commencement date, discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily determined, company’s incremental borrowing rate. 
Generally, the company uses its incremental borrowing rate as the discount rate.
The lease liability is measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. It is remeasured when there is a change in future lease payments arising
from a change in an index or rate, if there is a change in the company’s estimate of the amount expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee, or if
company changes its assessment of whether it will exercise a purchase, extension or termination option.

When the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in profit or
loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.

The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment
testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-
generating unit’s (CGU) fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. Recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not
generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its
recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken
into account. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used.

Impairment losses are recognized in the statement of profit and loss. After impairment, depreciation is provided on the revised carrying amount of the asset over
its remaining useful life.

The company has applied Ind AS 116 using the modified retrospective approach and therefore the comparative information has not been restated and continues
to be reported under Ind AS 17.

The determination of whether an arrangement is (or contains) a lease is based on the substance of the arrangement at the inception of the lease. The
arrangement is, or contains, a lease if fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets and the arrangement conveys a right to
use the asset or assets, even if that right is not explicitly specified in an arrangement.

The company recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement date. The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost, which
comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, plus any initial direct costs
incurred and an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or the site on which it is located, less any lease
incentives received.
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COVER STORY CLOTHING LIMITED (Formerly known as Future Style Lab Limited)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

(f) Inventories

(g) Revenue recognition

The following are the specific revenue recognition criteria:
a)

b)

c) Interest income

d) Dividend income

e) 

(h) Taxes
(i) Current income tax

(ii) Deferred tax

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets
The company has elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for short-term leases that have a lease term of 12 months. The company
recognises the lease payments associated with these leases as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term unless the receipts are structured to
increase in line with expected general inflation to compensate for the expected inflationary cost increases. 

Revenue is recognized upon transfer of control of promised products or services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration we expect to receive
in exchange for those products or services.

Revenue from sale of goods is recognized when all the significant risk and rewards of ownership of the goods have been passed to the buyer, usually on delivery
of the goods.

Revenue from services are recognised as they are rendered based on agreements/ arrangements with the concerned parties.

Interest income, including income arising from other financial instruments measured at amortized cost, is recognized using the effective interest rate method.

Revenue is recognised when the company’s right to receive the payment is established, which is generally when shareholders approve the dividend.

In arrangement for sale with a right of return, the Company has applied the guidance in Ind AS 115, Revenue from contract with customer, by applying the
revenue recognition criteria for each obligation.

Arrangements in the nature of lease
The Company enters into agreements, comprising a transaction or series of related transactions that does not take the legal form of a lease but conveys the right
to use the asset in return for a payment or series of payments. In case of such arrangements, the Company applies the requirements of Ind AS 116 – Leases to
the lease element of the arrangement. For the purpose of applying the requirements under Ind AS 116 – Leases, payments and other consideration required by
the arrangement are separated at the inception of the arrangement into those for lease and those for other elements.

Raw Materials, Components, Stores and Spares and Packing Material are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value.

Work-in-Progress, Finished Goods and Stock-in-Trade are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value. Finished Goods and Work-in-Progress include cost of
purchase, cost of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. Cost of inventories is computed on
weighted average basis.

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the revenue can be reliably measured. Revenue
is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, taking into account contractually defined terms of payment and excluding taxes or
duties collected on behalf of the government.

The Company collects taxes such as sales tax/Goods and Service tax, etc on behalf of the Government and, therefore, these are not economic benefits flowing to
the Company. Hence, they are excluded from the aforesaid revenue/ income.

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax
laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date in the countries where the company operates and
generates taxable income.

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity).
Current tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity. Management periodically evaluates positions
taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

Deferred income tax is recognized using the balance sheet approach, deferred tax is recognized on temporary differences at the balance sheet date between the
tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes, except when the deferred income tax arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss at the
time of the transaction.

Deferred income tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses, to the extent that
it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax
losses can be utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred income tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the  deferred income tax asset to be utilized.
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COVER STORY CLOTHING LIMITED (Formerly known as Future Style Lab Limited)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

(iii) Minimum alternate Tax

(i) Financial Instruments

Initial Recognition

Classification and Subsequent Measurement: Financial Assets

 -  the entity’s business model for managing the financial assets and
 -  the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset.

(i) Amortised Cost

(ii) Fair Value through other comprehensive income

(iii) Fair Value through Profit or Loss

Classification and Subsequent Measurement: Financial liabilities

(i) Financial Liabilities at FVTPL

(ii) Other Financial Liabilities:

Impairment of financial assets

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the
deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

MAT payable for a year is charged to the statement of profit and loss as current tax. The Company recognizes MAT credit available in the statement of profit and
loss as deferred tax with a corresponding asset only to the extent that there is probable certainty that the Company will pay normal income tax during the
specified period, i.e., the period for which MAT credit is allowed to be carried forward. The said asset is shown as ‘MAT Credit Entitlement’ under Deferred Tax.
The Company reviews the same at each reporting date and writes down the asset to the extent the Company does not have the probable certainty that it will pay
normal tax during the specified period.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial
assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss and ancillary costs related to borrowings) are
added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable
to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in Statement of Profit and Loss.

The Company classifies financial assets as subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through other comprehensive income (“FVOCI”) or fair value
through profit or loss (“FVTPL”) on the basis of following:

A financial asset shall be classified and measured at amortised cost if both of the following conditions are met:

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the asset is realized or the liability is
settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date.

A financial asset shall be classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss unless it is measured at amortised cost or at fair value through OCI.

All recognised financial assets are subsequently measured in their entirety at either amortised cost or fair value, depending on the classification of the financial
assets.

Financial liabilities are classified as either financial liabilities at FVTPL or ‘other financial liabilities’.

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the financial liability is held for trading or are designated upon initial recognition as FVTPL. Gains or Losses on
liabilities held for trading are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Other financial liabilities (including borrowings and trade and other payables) are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest expense over the relevant period. The
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments (including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral part
of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financial liability, or (where appropriate) a
shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

- the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows and
- the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount

outstanding.

A financial asset shall be classified and measured at fair value through OCI if both of the following conditions are met:
- the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and

- the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed for indicators of impairment at the end of each reporting period. The Company recognises a loss
allowance for expected credit losses on financial asset. In case of trade receivables, the Company follows the simplified approach permitted by Ind AS 109 –
Financial Instruments for recognition of impairment loss allowance. The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in
credit risk. The Company calculates the expected credit losses on trade receivables using a provision matrix on the basis of its historical credit loss experience.
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COVER STORY CLOTHING LIMITED (Formerly known as Future Style Lab Limited)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

Derecognition of financial assets

Derecognition of financial liabilities

Offsetting of financial instruments

(j) Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Classification as debt or equity

Equity instruments

(k) Convertible financial instrument

(l) Employee benefits
(i) Short-term obligations

(ii) Other long-term employee benefit obligations

The Company does not have investment in joint ventures and associates.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Debt and equity instruments issued by the Company are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by a
Company are recognised at the proceeds received.

Convertible instruments are separated into liability and equity components based on the terms of the contract.

On issuance of the convertible instruments, the fair value of the liability component is determined using a market rate for an equivalent non-convertible
instrument. This amount is classified as a financial liability measured at amortised cost (net of transaction costs) until it is extinguished on conversion or
redemption.

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another party. If the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the Company recognises its retained interest in the asset and an associated liability for
amounts it may have to pay. If the Company retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Company continues
to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received and receivable
and the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or loss if such gain or
loss would have otherwise been recognised in profit or loss on disposal of that financial asset.

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by
another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is
treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the
statement of profit or loss.

Equity investment in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates
The investments in subsidiary is carried in these financial statements at historical ‘cost’, except when the investment, or a portion thereof, is classified as held for
sale, in which case it is accounted for as Non-current assets held for sale and discontinued operations. Where the carrying amount of an investment in greater
than its estimated recoverable amount, it is written down immediately to its recoverable amount and the difference is transferred to the Statement of Profit and
Loss. On disposal of investment, the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount is charged or credited to the Statement of Profit and
Loss.

The remainder of the proceeds is allocated to the conversion option that is recognised and included in equity since conversion option meets Ind AS 32 criteria for
fixed to fixed classification. Transaction costs are deducted from equity, net of associated income tax. The carrying amount of the conversion option is not
remeasured in subsequent years.

Transaction costs are apportioned between the liability and equity components of the convertible instrument based on the allocation of proceeds to the liability
and equity components when the instruments are initially recognised.

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the period in which
the employees render the related service are recognised in respect of employees’ services up to the end of the reporting period and are measured at the
amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled. The liabilities are presented as current employee benefit obligations in the balance sheet.

The liabilities for earned leave and sick leave are not expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the period in which the employees render
the related service. They are therefore measured as the present value of expected future payments to be made in respect of services provided by employees up
to the end of the reporting period using the projected unit credit method. The benefits are discounted using the market yields at the end of the reporting period
that have terms approximating to the terms of the related obligation.

The obligations are presented as current liabilities in the balance sheet if the entity does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement for at least twelve
months after the reporting period, regardless of when the actual settlement is expected to occur.
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(iii) Post-employment obligations
The company operates the following post-employment schemes:
(a)   defined benefit plans viz. gratuity,
(b)   defined contribution plans viz. provident fund.

Gratuity obligations

Defined contribution plans

(iv) Termination benefits

(m) Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

(n) Borrowing costs

(o) Segment Reporting - Identification of Segments

(p) Government Grants

The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows by reference to market yields at the end of
the reporting period on government bonds that have terms approximating to the terms of the related obligation.

The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the defined benefit obligation and the fair value of plan assets. This cost is
included in employee benefit expense in the statement of profit and loss.

Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised in the period in which they occur,
directly in other comprehensive income. They are included in retained earnings in the statement of changes in equity and in the balance sheet.

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting from plan amendments or curtailments are recognised immediately in profit or loss as
past service cost.

The company pays provident fund contributions to publicly administered provident funds as per local regulations. The company has no further payment
obligations once the contributions have been paid. The contributions are accounted for as defined contribution plans and the contributions are recognised as
employee benefit expense when they are due. Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the future
payments is available.

Termination benefits are payable when employment is terminated by the company before the normal retirement date, or when an employee accepts voluntary
redundancy in exchange for these benefits.

The liability or asset recognised in the balance sheet in respect of defined benefit gratuity plans is the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the end
of the reporting period less the fair value of plan assets. The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually by actuaries using the projected unit credit method.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing
costs eligible for capitalisation. Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

An operating segment is a component of the Company that engages in business activities from which it may earn revenues and incur expenses, whose operating
results are regularly reviewed by the company’s chief operating decision maker to make decisions for which discrete financial information is available. Based on
the management approach as defined in Ind AS 108, the chief operating decision maker evaluates the Company’s performance and allocates resources based on
an analysis of various performance indicators by business segments and geographic segments.

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair value where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and the company will comply
with all attached conditions. Government grants relating to income are deferred and recognised in the profit or loss over the period necessary to match them
with the costs that they are intended to compensate and presented within other income.

Government grants relating to the purchase of property, plant and equipment are included in non-current liabilities as deferred income and are credited to profit
or loss on a straight-line basis over the expected lives of the related assets and presented within other income.

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event and it is probable that an outflow of
resources, that can be reliably estimated, will be required to settle such an obligation.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows to net present value using an
appropriate pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and, where appropriate, the risks specific to the liability.
Unwinding of the discount is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss as a finance cost. Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and are adjusted to
reflect the current best estimate.

A present obligation that arises from past events where it is either not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle or a reliable estimate of
the amount cannot be made, is disclosed as a contingent liability. Contingent liabilities are also disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past
events, the existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non -occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control
of the Company.

Claims against the Company where the possibility of any outflow of resources in settlement is remote, are not disclosed as contingent liabilities.

Contingent assets are not recognised in financial statements since this may result in the recognition of income that may never be realised. However, when the
realisation of income is virtually certain, then the related asset is not a contingent asset and is recognised.

General and specific borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset are capitalised during the
period of time that is required to complete and prepare the asset for its intended use or sale. Qualifying assets are assets that necessarily take a substantial
period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale.
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(q) Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing:
  - the profit attributable to owners of the company

Dilluted earnings per share

(r) Current/non current classification

All other assets are classified as non-current.

The company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

(s) Cash and cash equivalents

(t) Cash Flow Statement

(u) Dividends

(v) Share Based Payments

(w) Rounding of amounts

When loans or similar assistance are provided by governments or related institutions, with an interest rate below the current applicable market rate, the effect
of this favourable interest is regarded as a government grant. The loan or assistance is initially recognised and measured at fair value and the government grant is
measured as the difference between the initial carrying value of the loan and the proceeds received. The loan is subsequently measured as per the accounting
policy applicable to financial liabilities.

  - by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the financial year, adjusted for bonus elements in equity shares issued during the year

  - Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or
  - Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period

A liability is current when:
  - It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle
  - It is held primarily for the purpose of trading
  - It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the determination of basic earnings per share to take into account:
  - the after income tax effect of interest and other financing costs associated with dilutive potential equity
  - the weighted average number of additional equity shares that would have been outstanding assuming the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification. An asset is treated as current when it is:

  - Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle
  - Held primarily for the purpose of trading

The fair value determined at the grant date of the equity-settled share based payments is expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting period, based on the 
Company’s estimate of equity instruments that will eventually vest, with a corresponding increase in equity. At the end of each reporting period, the Company 
revises its estimate of the number of equity instruments expected to vest. The impact of the revision of the original estimates, if any, is recognised in Statement 
of Profit and Loss such that the cumulative expenses reflects the revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to the Share Based Payments Reserve.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional share dilution in the computation of diluted earnings per share.

In case of Group equity-settled share-based payment transactions, where the Company grants stock options to the employees of its subsidiaries, the transactions 
are accounted by increasing the cost of investment in subsidiary with a corresponding credit in the equity

All amounts disclosed in the financial statements and notes have been rounded off to the nearest Lakhs as per the requirement of Schedule III, unless otherwise
stated.

  - There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents. The company has identified
twelve months as its operating cycle.

Cash and cash equivalents in the Balance Sheet comprise cash at bank and in hand and short-term deposits with banks having original maturity of three months
or less which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value.

Cash Flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit before tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or
accruals of past or future operating cash receipts or payments and item of income or expenses associated with investing or financing cash flows. The cash flows
from operating, investing and financing activities of the company are segregated.

Provision is made for the amount of any dividend declared, being appropriately authorised and no longer at the discretion of the entity, on or before the end of
the reporting period but not distributed at the end of the reporting period.

Equity-settled share based payments to employees and others providing similar services are measured at the fair value of the equity instruments at the grant 
date. Details regarding the determination of the fair value of equity-settled share based payments transactions are set out in Note 32.
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3 Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

(i)

(ii)

(iii) Valuation of deferred tax assets

(iv) Defined benefit plans

(v) Provisions

(vi) Fair value measurement

The preparation of these financial statements in conformity with the recognition and measurement principles of Ind AS requires the management of the
Company to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported balances of assets and liabilities, disclosures relating to contingent liabilities as at the date
of the financial statements and the reported amounts of income and expense for the periods presented.

The Company reviews the useful life of property, plant and equipment at the end of each reporting period. This reassessment may result in change in
depreciation expense in future periods.

The Company reviews the carrying amount of deferred tax assets at the end of each reporting period. The policy for the same has been explained under Note (h)
above.

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and the present value of the gratuity obligation are determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation
involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary
increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to
changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimates
are revised and future periods are affected.

Key sources of estimation of uncertainty at the date of the financial statements, which may cause a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year, are in respect of impairment of non current assets, useful lives of property, plant and equipment, valuation of deferred
tax assets, provisions and contingent liabilities and fair value measurement.

Impairment of non - financial assets
Impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of its fair value less costs of
disposal and its value in use. The fair value less costs of disposal calculation is based on available data from binding sales transactions, conducted at arm’s length,
for similar assets or observable market prices less incremental costs for disposing of the asset. The value in use calculation is based on a DCF model. The cash
flows are derived from the budget for the next five years and do not include restructuring activities that the Company is not yet committed to or significant
future investments that will enhance the asset’s performance of the CGU being tested. The recoverable amount is sensitive to the discount rate used for the DCF
model as well as the expected future cash-inflows and the growth rate used for extrapolation purposes. These estimates are most relevant to disclosure of fair
value of investment property recorded by the Company.

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

Provisions and liabilities are recognized in the period when it becomes probable that there will be a future outflow of funds resulting from past operations or
events and the amount of cash outflow can be reliably estimated. The timing of recognition and quantification of the liability require the application of
judgement to existing facts and circumstances, which can be subject to change. Since the cash outflows can take place many years in the future, the carrying
amounts of provisions and liabilities are reviewed regularly and adjusted to take account of changing facts and circumstances.

Management uses valuation techniques to determine the fair value of financial instruments (where active market quotes are not available) and non-financial
assets. This involves developing estimates and assumptions consistent with how market participants would price the instrument. Management bases its
assumptions on observable data as far as possible but this is not always available. In that case management uses the best information available. Estimated fair
values may vary from the actual prices that would be achieved in an arm’s length transaction at the reporting date.

Cover Story Clothing Limited | 29



COVER STORY CLOTHING LIMITED (Formerly known as Future Style Lab Limited)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

4. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Amount in INR Lakhs)

As at 
1st April, 2023

Additions
Adjustment/

Deletion
As at 31st March, 2024

As at 1st
April, 2023

For the year
Adjustment/

Deletion
As at 31st 

March, 2024
As at 31st March, 

2024
As at 31st 

March, 2023

Property, Plant And Equipment
Own Assets:

Plant and Equipments 5.09 18.23 95.69 119.01 0.61 14.05 83.30 97.96 21.05 4.48
Furniture and Fixtures 957.55 309.47 (151.59) 1,115.43 420.47 135.30 (100.34) 455.43 660.00 537.08
Office Equipments 170.98 133.76 29.63 334.37 102.35 26.84 54.45 183.64 150.73 68.63
Electrical Installation 112.35 293.68 (34.78) 371.25 104.57 13.62 (46.96) 71.23 300.02 7.78
Leasehold Improvements 1,212.65 514.68 (56.28) 1,671.05 1,064.55 102.51 (82.50) 1,084.56 586.49 148.10

 Sub-Total (a) 2,458.62   1,269.82   (117.33) 3,611.11   1,692.55   292.32   (92.05) 1,892.82   1,718.29   766.07   

 Right-Of-Use Assets: 
 Lease Premises 5,039.65 4,516.11 (340.41) 9,215.35 3,789.12 1,229.89 (340.42) 4,678.59 4,536.76 1,250.53

 Sub-Total (b) 5,039.65   4,516.11   (340.41) 9,215.35   3,789.12   1,229.89   (340.42) 4,678.59   4,536.76   1,250.53   
 Total (a+b) 7,498.27   5,785.93   (457.74) 12,826.46   5,481.67   1,522.21   (432.47) 6,571.41   6,255.05   2,016.60   
 Previous Year (a+b) 11,464.97   35.05   (4,001.75) 7,498.27   7,101.41   992.61   (2,612.35) 5,481.67   2,016.60   4,363.56   

 Computer Software 9.69  226.35  -   236.04   7.51   30.85  (1.87) 36.49   199.55   2.18  

 Total (c) 9.69  226.35  -   236.04  7.51   30.85  (1.87) 36.49   199.55  2.18  
 Previous Year (c) 9.69  -   -   9.69   6.22   1.29  -   7.51   2.18   3.47  

 Total (a+b+c) 7,507.96   6,012.28  (457.74) 13,062.50  5,489.18   1,553.06   (434.34) 6,607.90  6,454.60  2,018.78   
 Previous Year (a+b+c) 11,474.66  35.05   (4,001.75) 7,507.96  7,107.63   993.90  (2,612.35) 5,489.18  2,018.78  4,367.03   

5A. Intangible Assets Under Development 
(IAUD) 63.72   - (63.72) -   -   -  -   -   -   63.72   

 Previous Year -  63.72   - 63.72   -   -  -   -   63.72   -  

a) INTANGIBLE ASSETS UNDER DEVELOPMENT
(i) As at March 31, 2024 (Amount in INR Lakhs)

Less than 1 Year 1-2 year 2-3 year More than 3 years Total
-   -   -  -  -  
-   -   -  -  -  
-   -   -  -  -  

(ii) As at March 31, 2023 (Amount in INR Lakhs)

Less than 1 Year 1-2 year 2-3 year More than 3 years Total
63.72   -   -  -  63.72  

-   -   -  -  -  
63.72   -   -  -  63.72  

Notes :-
1. The Company do not have any Intangible assets under development, whose completion is overdue or has exceeded its cost compared to its original plan.
2. Contractual Obligations

Refer to Note 31 for disclosure of contractual commitments for the Intangible under development (Website) .

Projects in Progress 
Projects temporarily suspended
Total

Gross Carrying Value 

Intangible assets under development

Particulars

5. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS UNDER DEVELOPMENT

Net BlockDepreciation/Amortisation

Total

Projects in Progress 
Projects temporarily suspended

Intangible assets under development

Amount in IAUD for a period of

Amount in IAUD for a period of
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(Amount in INR Lakhs)

 As at 
March 31, 2024 

 As at 
March 31, 2023 

   0.09   0.09 

Total    0.09   0.09 

0.09  0.09     

 Current 
    Investments carried at Cost 
     Unquoted 

 (a) Investments in Mutual Funds - 1,013.88 

Total - 1,013.88 

(C) OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS
Non Current

Financial assets carried at amortised cost
Lease Deposits 472.98        565.92 

Total 472.98    565.92   

Current
Financial assets carried at amortised cost
Lease Deposits     373.61     655.83 

Total 373.61    655.83   

(Amount in INR Lakhs)
 As at 

March 31, 2024 
 As at 

March 31, 2023 
(Valued at lower of Cost and Net Realisable value)

 Stock-in-trade* 1,638.52      2,589.86 

Total    1,638.52    2,589.86 
*Net of provision 

(Amount in INR Lakhs)
 As at 

March 31, 2024 
 As at 

March 31, 2023 
Current

Trade Receivables from customers* 1,370.42   1,448.18  

   1,370.42    1,448.18 
Breakup of Security details
Secured, considered good     -    -   
Unsecured, considered good    1,370.42    1,448.18 
Which have significant increase in credit risk    5.00     617.80 
Credit impaired     -    -   

   1,375.42    2,065.98 

Less: Allowance for bad and doubtful debts
Expected credit loss    5.00     617.80 
Credit impairment     -    -   

   5.00     617.80 

Total    1,370.42    1,448.18 

8. TRADE RECEIVABLES

Particulars

 * The amounts for the current year are disclosed as net amount party wise and net of provision for mark down. 

 Trade or Other Receivable due from directors or other officers of the company either severally or jointly with any other person amounted to INR NIL (Previous year INR NIL). 

 Trade or Other Receivable due from firms or private companies respectively in which any director is a partner, a director or a member amounted to INR NIL (Previous year INR NIL). 

The company has taken impairment impact of INR NIL (March 31, 2023: INR 250.94 Lakhs ) on Inventory for stores shutdown during the year.

7. INVENTORIES

Particulars

Note :
1. There are no loans or advances in the nature of loans granted to Promoters, Directors, KMPs and their related parties (as defined under Companies Act, 2013), either severally or jointly with any

other person.
 2. The company has taken impairment impact of INR NIL (March 31, 2023: INR 30.02 Lakhs ) on Security Deposits (SD) for stores shutdown during the year.

Particulars

(A) INVESTMENTS
Non Current

(b) Investments in Equity Shares of a Subsidiary

6. FINANCIAL ASSETS

Aggregate amount of unquoted investments

 100 Equity shares of Cover Story Clothing UK Limited (Formerly known as Future Style Lab UK Limited) of GBP 1 each 

(B) INVESTMENTS
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 Particulars Not due
Less than 6 

months
6 months - 

1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years
More than 

3 years
Total

Undisputed trade receivables considered good 1,349.61        20.81             -              -          -             -               1,370.42             
Undisputed trade receivables which have significant increase in 
credit risk -                 -                 5.00            -          -             -               5.00                    
Undisputed trade receivables -credit impaired -                 -                 -              -          -             -               -                      
Disputed trade receivables considered good -                 -                 -              -          -             -               -                      
Disputed trade receivables which have significant increase in credit 
risk -                 -                 -              -          -             -               -                      
Disputed trade receivables -credit impaired -                 -                 -              -          -             -               -                      
Total(A) 1,349.61       20.81             5.00            -          -             -               1,375.42             
Allowance for expected credit loss -                 5.00            -          -             -               5.00                    
Allowance for credit impairment -                 -          -             -               -                      
Total(B) -                 5.00            -          -             -               5.00                    
Total [A-B] 1,349.61       20.81             -              -          -             -               1,370.42             

Particulars Not due
Less than 6 

months
6 months - 

1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years
More than 

3 years
Total

Undisputed trade receivables considered good 1,181.10        267.08           -              -          -             -               1,448.18             
Undisputed trade receivables which have significant increase in 
credit risk -                 -                 -              617.80    -             -               617.80                
Undisputed trade receivables -credit impaired -                 -                 -              -          -             -               -                      
Disputed trade receivables considered good -                 -                 -              -          -             -               -                      
Disputed trade receivables which have significant increase in credit 
risk -                 -                 -              -          -             -               -                      
Disputed trade receivables -credit impaired -                 -                 -              -          -             -               -                      
Total(A) 1,181.10       267.08           -              617.80    -             -               2,065.98             
Allowance for expected credit loss -                 617.80    -             -               617.80                
Allowance for credit impairment -                 -          -             -               -                      
Total(B) -                 617.80    -             -               617.80                
Total [A-B] 1,181.10       267.08           -              -          -             -               1,448.18             

Ageing for trade receivables from the due date of payment for each of the category as at 31st March, 2024
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Ageing for trade receivables from the due date of payment for each of the category as at 31st March, 2023
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

There are no unbilled receivables as at 31st March, 2024 and 31st March, 2023.

Cover Story Clothing Limited | 32



COVER STORY CLOTHING LIMITED (Formerly known as Future Style Lab Limited)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

(Amount in INR Lakhs)

Particulars
 As at 

March 31, 2024 
 As at 

March 31, 2023 

 Balances with banks on current accounts 24.98                                                                109.91 
 Cash on hand 11.41                                                                    3.99 

Total 36.39                              113.90                                 

(Amount in INR Lakhs)

Particulars
 As at 

March 31, 2024 
 As at 

March 31, 2023 

Deposits with banks as security against borrowings 247.41                            231.90                                 

Total 247.41                           231.90                                 

(Amount in INR Lakhs)

Particulars
 As at 

March 31, 2024 
 As at 

March 31, 2023 
Non Current

Others
 - Payment of Taxes (Net of Provisions) 27.55                                                                    5.81 

Total                                27.55                                       5.81 

Current
Advances other than Capital advances

 - Advances to Suppliers * 127.76                                                                  5.54 
 - Advances to Employees 8.91                                                                           -   
 - Other Advances 31.45                                                                  23.99 

Others
 - Prepaid expenses 4.36                                                                    19.19 
 - Right to recover returned goods 377.22                                                                57.79 
 - Balances with Statutory, Government Authorities 1,923.67                                                      1,197.00 

Total                          2,473.37                               1,303.51 

* The amounts for the previous year are disclosed as net amount party wise 

Deferred Tax (Amount in INR Lakhs)

Particulars
 As at 

March 31, 2024 
 As at 

March 31, 2023 

Deferred tax relates to the following:
Temporary differences in the carrying value of Property, Plant and Equipment                                       -                                              -   
Temporary Disallowance                                       -                                              -   

Net Deferred Tax Assets / (Liabilities)                                       -                                              -   

9. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

10. OTHER BANK BALANCES

11. OTHER ASSETS

11A. INCOME TAX

Note: Deposits are kept in lien with the Bank towards security deposits for Short Term Borrowings (Bank Overdraft).

There are no advances to directors or other officers of the Group or any of them either severally or jointly with any other persons or advances to
firms or private companies respectively in which any director is a partner or a director or a member.
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Movement in deferred tax liabilities/assets (Amount in INR Lakhs)

Particulars
 As at 

March 31, 2024 
 As at 

March 31, 2023 

Opening balance as of April 1, 2023 -                                   -                                        
Tax income/(expense) during the period recognised in profit or loss 0.15 (3.01)
Tax income/(expense) during the period recognised in OCI (0.15) 3.01

Closing balance as at March 31, 2024 -                                  -                                       

(Amount in INR Lakhs)

Particulars
 As at 

March 31, 2024 
 As at 

March 31, 2023 
Unrecognised deferred tax assets
Unrecognised tax losses 3,167.98                        1,098.42                              
Temporary differences 525.29                            585.07                                 

Total 3,693.27                        1,683.49                              

Major Components of income tax expense for the years ended March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023 are as follows:

i. Income tax recognised in profit or loss (Amount in INR Lakhs)

Particulars
 As at 

March 31, 2024 
 As at 

March 31, 2023 
Deferred tax
Relating to origination and reversal of temporary differences (0.15) 3.01                                      
Income tax expense recognised in profit or loss (0.15) 3.01                                     

ii. Income tax recognised in OCI (Amount in INR Lakhs)

Particulars
 As at 

March 31, 2024 
 As at 

March 31, 2023 

Net loss/(gain) on remeasurements of defined benefit plans (0.15) 3.01                                      

Income tax expense recognised in OCI (0.15) 3.01                                      

Reconciliation of tax expense and accounting profit multiplied by income tax rate for March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023
(Amount in INR Lakhs)

Particulars
 As at 

March 31, 2024 
 As at 

March 31, 2023 
Accounting profit before income tax (6,746.50) (5,348.60)
Enacted tax rate in India 25.17% 26.00%
Income tax on accounting profits (1,697.96) (1,390.64)

Tax Effect of
Items considered separately under Income Tax 30.01                               279.24                                  

Recognistion of deferred tax relating to origination and reversal of temporary differences
(0.15) 3.01                                      

Losses carried forward to future years 1,667.95                         1,111.40                              
Tax at effective income tax rate (0.15) 3.01                                      

Tax losses which arose in India of INR 6,627.27 lakhs (Previous year INR 5,960.08) that are available for offsetting for eight years against future
taxable profits of the company.

The Company offsets tax assets and liabilities if and only if it has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets and current tax liabilities and
the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority.

Considering the probability of availability of future taxable profits in the period in which tax losses expire, deferred tax assets have not been
recognised in respect of tax lossses carried forward by the Company.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

i. Authorised Share Capital (Amount in INR Lakhs)
Number Amount

Equity Share of INR 10 each
At April 1, 2022 68,00,000  680.00   
Increase/(decrease) during the year 80,00,000  800.00   
At March 31, 2023 1,48,00,000  1,480.00  
Increase/(decrease) during the year -  -  

At March 31, 2024 1,48,00,000  1,480.00  
Preference Share of INR 10 each

At April 1, 2022 2,00,000  20.00   
Increase/(decrease) during the year - -
At March 31, 2023 2,00,000  20.00   
Increase/(decrease) during the year - -

At March 31, 2024 2,00,000  20.00   
Total Authorised Share Capital At March 31, 2024 1,50,00,000  1,500.00  

ii. Issued and Subscribed and Paid up :
Number Amount

At April 1, 2022   16,63,555   166.36 
Issued during the period 66,26,811    662.68 
At March 31, 2023   82,90,366   829.04 
Issued during the period -  -  
At March 31, 2024 82,90,366   829.04  

Terms/rights attached to equity shares

iii. Shares held by Holding Company

 As at 
March 31, 2024 

 As at 
March 31, 2023 

Reliance Retail Ventures Limited (w.e.f. 15/06/2022)
Equity shares of INR 10 each fully paid 82,90,366  82,90,366   

iv. Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the company

Number % of total  holding Number % of total  holding

Equity shares of INR 10 each fully paid
Reliance Retail Ventures Limited (along with nominees) 82,90,366  100% 82,90,366   100%

vii. Details of shareholdings by the Promoter’s of the Company

No of Shares % of total shares No of Shares % of total shares

Reliance Retail Ventures Limited (Including nominees)* 82,90,366   100.00% 82,90,366   100.00% -
Total Promoters Shares Outstanding 82,90,366   82,90,366   
Total Shares Outstanding 82,90,366   82,90,366   

Particulars

Particulars
Equity shares of INR 10 each issued, subscribed and fully paid

Particulars

Name of the shareholder 

As per records of the Company, including its register of shareholders/members and other declaration received from shareholders, the above shareholding represents
legal ownership of shares.The company was a wholly owned subsidiary of FLFL Lifestyle Brands Limited. However, during the period, FLFL Lifestyle Brands Limited has
sold its entire shareholding in the company to Reliance Retail Ventures Limited. Consequently, Reliance Retail Ventures Limited has become the holding company of

the company with effect from 15th June, 2022.

vi. Aggregate number of equity shares issued as bonus, shares issued for consideration other than cash and shares bought back during the period of five years
immediately preceding the reporting date - NIL

Out of equity and preference shares issued by the company, shares held by its holding company is as below:

As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023

12.  SHARE CAPITAL

The Company has only one class of equity shares having face value of Rs.10 each. The holder of the equity share is entitled to dividend right and
voting right in the same proportion as the capital paid-up on such equity share bears to the total paid-up equity share capital of the Company. 

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive the remaining assets of the Company in the same
proportion as the capital paid-up on the equity shares held by them bears to the total paid-up equity share capital of the Company

* Note: Shares are held as nominee of Reliance Retail Ventures Limited (Holding Company). Beneficial interest is held by the holding Company.

viii. The Company has not proposed/declared/paid any dividend during the year.

v. None of the above shares are reserved for Issue under options/contract/commitments for sale of shares or disinvestment.

Promoters name As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023 % Change during
the year
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COVER STORY CLOTHING LIMITED (Formerly known as Future Style Lab Limited)

13. OTHER EQUITY

i. Reserves and Surplus (Amount in INR Lakhs)

Particulars
 As at 

March 31, 2024 
 As at 

March 31, 2023 
Securities Premium Account 28,950.03  28,950.03  

  Share Based Payment Reserve 496.85   -   
Retained Earnings (32,654.16) (25,908.26)
Zero Coupon Optionally Fully Convertible Debentures 2,800.00   2,200.00   

(407.28) 5,241.77  

(a) Securities Premium Account (Amount in INR Lakhs)

Particulars
 As at 

March 31, 2024 
 As at 

March 31, 2023 
Opening balance 28,950.03   3,835.08   
Add/(Less):

Exercise of options - proceeds received
Equity share issued -   25,114.95   

Closing balance 28,950.03  28,950.03  

(b) Share Based Payment Reserve (Amount in INR Lakhs)

Particulars
 As at 

March 31, 2024 
 As at 

March 31, 2023 
Opening balance -   49.36  
Add/(Less):

Compensation options granted during the year -   -   
Transfer to General Reserve on exercise/lapse of option 496.85   (49.36)

Closing balance 496.85   -   

(c) Retained Earnings (Amount in INR Lakhs)

Particulars
 As at 

March 31, 2024 
 As at 

March 31, 2023 
Opening balance (25,908.26) (20,416.12)
Net Loss for the period (6,746.35) (5,351.61)

Others -   (181.31)
Transfer from Share Based Payment Reserve -   49.36

Items of Other Comprehensive Income directly recognised in Retained Earnings
Remeasurement of post employment benefit obligation, net of tax 0.45 (8.58)

Closing balance (32,654.16) (25,908.26)

(d) Optionally Fully Convertible Debentures (OFCDs) (Amount in INR Lakhs)

Particulars
 As at 

March 31, 2024 
 As at 

March 31, 2023 
Opening balance 2,200.00   609.90   
Add/(Less):

Contribution from Equity Shareholders* 600.00   2,200.00   
Conversion in Equity Shares -   (609.90)

Closing balance 2,800.00   2,200.00   

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

The amount received in excess of face value of the equity shares is recognised in Share Premium Reserve. This is not available for distribution of dividend but can be utilised as per the
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

The amount received in excess of face value of the equity shares is recognised in Share Premium Reserve. This is not available for distribution of dividend but can be utilised as per the
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

*Note:
(a) Equity component of Optionally Fully Convertible Debentures issued in current year to Reliance Retail Ventures Limited at a coupon rate of 0% p.a. (refer note 13)

The Company has share option schemes under which options to subscribe for the company's shares have been granted to certain employees.

The Share based payment reserve is used to recognise the value of equity settled share based payments provided to employees, as part of their remuneration. Refer to Note 30 for further
details of these plans.
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COVER STORY CLOTHING LIMITED (Formerly known as Future Style Lab Limited)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

14. BORROWINGS
(Amount in INR Lakhs)

Particulars
 As at 

March 31, 2024 
 As at 

March 31, 2023 
Non Current Borrowings

 Unsecured 
1,945.00                                              -                                           
2,200.00                                              -                                           

(2,200.00)                                             -                                           
1,945.00                                              -                                           

Current Borrowings
 Secured 

Overdraft facility from a bank1                                                   159.78 -                                           
159.78                                                  -                                            

Notes:
1.  Secured against fixed deposits with banks, Repayable on demand.

 As at 
March 31, 2024 

 As at 
March 31, 2023 

Non Current Borrowings
 Unsecured 

Optionally Fully Convertible Debenture1 -                                                        -                                           

Optionally Fully Convertible Debentures

Particulars
 As at 

March 31, 2024 
 As at 

March 31, 2023 
                                                           -                                     6,118.82 

(600.00) (2,200.00)
(600.00)                                  3,918.82 

(54.00) 32.66
-                                                         -                                            

Redemption of Debenture/Conversion in to Equity 654.00 (3,951.48)
                                                           -                                                 -   

* Interest expense is calculated by applying the effective interest rate of 09.00% to the liability component.

 Optionally Fully Convertible Debentures (OFCDs) 
 Inter Corporate Deposit2&3

2. During the year company has accepted Inter Corporate Deposit amounting to Rs 1945.00 Lakhs from Reliance Retail Ventures Limited and Interest to be paid @ 9% p.a.

1. The Company had issued Zero Coupon Unsecured Optionally Fully Convertible Debentures (OFCD) amounting to INR 600.00 Lakhs to Reliance Retail Ventures Limited making total
outstanding amounting to INR 2,800.00 Lakhs. Both the Company and OFCD holder have an option for early conversion at any time after allotment of the OFCDs by giving one-month notice.
The debentures are convertible into equity shares of the entity and shall be converted into share of face value of Rs. 10/- each or at a fair value determined as per Rule 11UA of Income Tax
Rules, 1962 whichever is higher as on the date of issue of OFCD for every 1 OFCD held, at the option of the Company at any time.
The tenure of each OFCD shall be 10 (ten) years from the date of its allotment and outstanding OFCDs, if any, not converted earlier be redeemed at the end of Tenure, if the holder does not
exercise the conversion option. The Company may agree for early redemption of the outstanding OFCD (an any date after expiry of 30 days from the date of allotment of the OFCDs). Board
to decide at its discretion for disposal of un-subscribed portion.

      Total
# The equity component of  Optionally Fully Convertible Debentures has been presented under other equity in the balance sheet.

3. Both the companies Reliance Retail Ventures Limited (Lender) and Cover Story Clothing Limited (Formerly known as Future Style Lab Limited) (Borrower) have mutually decided that
interest charged and payable on monthly basis. The outstanding principle amount was not demanded by the lender as at 31st March, 2024. 

Interest paid

4. The Company does not have any borrowings from banks and financial institutions that are used for any other purpose other than the specific purpose for which it was taken at the
reporting balance sheet date.

(Amount in INR Lakhs)

Interest expense *

The convertible debentures are presented in the balance sheet as follows:

      Total

      Total

Particulars

(Amount in INR Lakhs)

Debenture issued @ Face value of INR 10/-
Equity component of Optionally Fully Convertible Debentures - value of conversion rights#

 Less : Reclassified under Other Equity 
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COVER STORY CLOTHING LIMITED (Formerly known as Future Style Lab Limited)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

(Amount in INR Lakhs)

Particulars
 As at 

March 31, 2024 
 As at 

March 31, 2023 
Current Borrowings

 Secured 
 Overdraft facility from a bank                                                   159.78                                               -   

159.78                                                 -                                           

Net Borrowings Reconciliation

This section sets out an analysis of net debt and the movements in net debt for each of the periods specified :
(Amount in INR Lakhs)

Non Current 
Borrowings

Current Borrowings Total Borrowings

Net Borrowings as at March 31, 2022 3,918.81                        3,920.15                                                                               7,838.96 
Cash Inflows 2,200.00                        33,322.75                                                                           35,522.75 
Cash Outflows                                      -                                              (37,325.58)                              (37,325.58)

                         6,118.81                                                   (82.68)                                  6,036.13 

Interest Expense 32.66                                                                                  30.32                                        62.98 
Interest Paid -                                  (30.32)                                                                                       (30.32)
Interest - Reclassification component -                                  -                                                                                                      -   

609.90                            -                                                                                             609.90 

Others (Reversal of Initial Recognition Impact) 181.63                            -                                                                                             181.63 

Other non cash adjustments (Classified as equity)                        (6,943.00)                                                            -                                   (6,943.00)
Reclassified under Cash & Cash Equivalent                                      -                                                       82.68                                        82.68 

Net Borrowings as at March 31, 2023 -                                   -                                                         -                                            
Cash Inflows 3,795.00                        8,550.27                                                                             12,345.27 
Cash Outflows (1,250.00)                       (8,390.49)                                             (9,640.49)                               

2,545.00                        159.78                                                 2,704.78                                 
Interest Expense 66.27                                                                                     7.68                                        73.95 
Interest Paid (66.27)                            (7.68)                                                                                         (73.95)
Interest - Reclassification component -                                  -                                                                                                      -   
Other non cash adjustments (Classified as equity) (600.00)                          -                                                                                           (600.00)

Net Borrowings as at March 31, 2024 1,945.00                        159.78                                                 2,104.78                                 

Equity Component of Compounding Financial Instrument including reversal of initial recognition 
impact

Particulars

      Total

Liabilities from financing activities
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COVER STORY CLOTHING LIMITED (Formerly known as Future Style Lab Limited)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

15. OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
(Amount in INR Lakhs)

 As at 
March 31, 2024 

 As at 
March 31, 2023 

 Current
Employees Dues                               0.89 9.47                                 
Refund Liability                           812.20 165.11                             
Other Payables                           501.26 657.91                             

1,314.35                      832.49                             

16.LEASE LIABILITIES
(Amount in INR Lakhs)

 As at 
March 31, 2024 

 As at 
March 31, 2023 

 Non Current
Lease Liabilities (Refer Note 32)                        4,196.40 1,242.25                          

4,196.40                      1,242.25                          

 Current
Lease Liabilities (Refer Note 32)                        1,175.46 363.87                             

1,175.46                      363.87                             

(Amount in INR Lakhs)
 As at 

March 31, 2024 
 As at 

March 31, 2023 
Current

Trade Payables to Micro enterprises and Small enterprises                           411.66 263.46                             
Trade Payables to Creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises                        2,338.77 1,087.66                          

2,750.43                      1,351.12                          

Terms and conditions of the above financial liabilities:
1. Trade payables are non-interest bearing and are normally settled on 45-day terms
2. For terms and conditions with related parties, refer note 34

(Amount in INR Lakhs)

 Not due 
 Less than 1 

year 
 1-2 years  2-3 years  More than 3 years 

Undisputed Dues - MSME 411.66           -                 -               -                -                                411.66                              
Undisputed Dues - Others 2,290.72        1.33               1.82             44.90            -                                2,338.77                          
Disputed Dues - MSME -                 -               -                -                                -                                    
Disputed Dues - Others -                 -                 -               -                -                                -                                    
Total 2,702.38        1.33               1.82             44.90            -                                2,750.43                          

(Amount in INR Lakhs)

 Not due 
 Less than 1 

year 
 1-2 years  2-3 years  More than 3 years 

Undisputed Dues - MSME 263.46           -                 -               -                -                                263.46                              
Undisputed Dues - Others 474.50           613.16           -               -                -                                1,087.66                          
Disputed Dues - MSME -                 -                 -               -                -                                -                                    
Disputed Dues - Others -                 -                 -               -                -                                -                                    
Total 737.96           613.16           -               -                -                                1,351.12                          

There are no overdue amounts to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises as at 31st March, 2024 
There are no unbilled dues as at 31st March, 2024 and 31st March, 2023.

Particulars

Total

Ageing for trade payables from the due date of payment for each of the category as at 31st March, 2023

Ageing for trade payables from the due date of payment for each of the category as at 31st March, 2024

 Total Particulars
 Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment 

Particulars

Particulars

Total

Particulars

Total

Total

 * The company has taken impairment impact of INR NIL (March 31, 2023: 1,223.25 Lakhs ) on Lease Liabilities for stores shutdown during the year. 

 Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment 

17. TRADE PAYABLES

 Total 
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(Amount in INR Lakhs)
 As at 

March 31, 2024 
 As at 

March 31, 2023 
Current

 Other Advances                           897.44 -                                   
 Other Current Liabilities                             29.30 -                                   
 Statutory Liabilities*                           109.65 66.65                               

                      1,036.39                                 66.65 

(Amount in INR Lakhs)
 As at 

March 31, 2024 
 As at 

March 31, 2023 

Non Current
 Provision for employee benefits 

 Gratuity                             54.33 52.40                               
 Leave encashment                              34.49 28.93                               

88.82                           81.33                               

Current
 Provision for employee benefits 

 Gratuity                               3.42 1.65                                 
 Leave encashment                                3.13 1.21                                 

6.55                              2.86                                 

18. OTHER LIABILITIES

Particulars

19. PROVISIONS

Particulars

Total

Total

Total

 *It includes GST, PF and TDS etc. 
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

20. REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS
(Amount in INR Lakhs)

Particulars  2023-24  2022-23 

 Sale of Products                                          7,667.11                                              5,213.58 

          Total 7,667.11                                         5,213.58                                             

Reconciliation of revenue recognised with contract price: (Amount in INR Lakhs)

Particulars  2023-24  2022-23 

 Contract price                                          8,479.31                                              5,378.69 
 Adjustments for: 
 Refund liabilities                                           (812.20)                                                (165.11)

Revenue from continuing operations                                          7,667.11                                              5,213.58 

 Critical judgements in recognising revenue 

21. OTHER INCOME
(Amount in INR Lakhs)

Particulars  2023-24  2022-23 

 Interest income on : 
 Bank fixed deposits                                               17.23                                                    19.68 
 IT Refund                                                      -                                                        0.41 
 Financial assets at amortised cost                                               57.76                                                    15.37 
 Gain on Financial Assets: 
 1. Unrealized Gain (5.83)                                                      5.93 
 2. Realized Gain                                               15.77                                                      7.96 
 Sundry balances written back                                             618.17                                                      0.62 
 Miscellaneous Income                                               68.33                                                          -   

          Total 771.43                                            49.97                                                  

22. PURCHASES OF STOCK-IN-TRADE
(Amount in INR Lakhs)

Particulars  2023-24  2022-23 

 Purchases of Stock-In-Trade                                          5,629.93                                              5,009.48 

           Total 5,629.93                                         5,009.48                                             

23. CHANGES IN INVENTORIES OF STOCK-IN-TRADE
(Amount in INR Lakhs)

Particulars  2023-24  2022-23 

 Inventories as at the beginning of the year 
 Stock-in-trade                                           2,589.86                                                 615.59 
 Right to recover returned goods                                               57.79                                                    68.57 
 Total 2,647.65                                         684.16                                                

 Less : Inventories as at the end of the year 
 Stock-in-trade                                           1,638.52                                              2,589.86 
 Right to recover returned goods                                             377.22                                                    57.79 
 Total 2,015.74                                         2,647.65                                             

 Net decrease / (increase) in inventories 631.91                                            (1,963.49)

24. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE
(Amount in INR Lakhs)

Particulars  2023-24  2022-23 

 Salaries, wages and bonus                                          1,332.42                                              2,849.92 
 Contribution to provident and other funds                                               56.52                                                    57.61 
 Share based payments to employees                                             496.85                                                          -   
 Staff welfare expenses                                               49.97                                                    42.75 
 Gratuity Expense                                               19.37                                                      8.73 

           Total 1,955.13                                         2,959.01                                             

25. FINANCE COST
(Amount in INR Lakhs)

Particulars  2023-24  2022-23 

 Interest expense on debts and borrowings                                             160.97                                                 145.87 
 Interest expense on Lease Liabilities                                             528.37                                                 226.77 

           Total 689.34                                            372.64                                                

The company has recognised revenue for sale of products to various channels during the periods. The buyers have the right to return the goods within the given period if the
goods remain unsold with these channels or customers are dissatisfied. The company believes that, based on past experience with similar sales, the return will not exceed INR
812.20 lakhs (2022-23 : 165.11 lakhs). The company has, therefore, recognised revenue on these transactions with a corresponding provision against revenue for estimated
returns. The company also recognises a provision for discount offered to various channels for the goods lying unsold with them.

Cover Story Clothing Limited | 41



COVER STORY CLOTHING LIMITED (Formerly known as Future Style Lab Limited)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

26. DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION EXPENSE
(Amount in INR Lakhs)

Particulars  2023-24  2022-23 

 Depreciation on tangible assets                                             292.32                                                 301.43 
 Depreciation on ROU Assets                                          1,229.89                                                 691.18 
 Amortisation on intangible assets                                               30.85                                                      1.29 

           Total 1,553.06                                         993.90                                                

27. OTHER EXPENSES
(Amount in INR Lakhs)

Particulars  2023-24  2022-23 

 Repairs and maintenance                                                85.92                                                    44.38 
 Payments to auditor (Refer note below)                                                  9.22                                                      8.60 
 Expected Credit Loss                                                  5.00                                                 617.80 
 Electricity charges                                               84.01                                                    39.99 
 House Keeping Expenses                                               91.87                                                    24.28 
 Insurance                                               36.87                                                      7.02 
 Legal and professional fees                                             589.99                                                 343.57 
 Rates, Duties and taxes                                               13.65                                                    39.24 
 Business promotion                                              974.64                                                 282.83 
 Sampling Charges                                               36.77                                                    49.10 
 Security charges                                               25.92                                                      3.64 
 Communication expenses                                               11.57                                                      9.41 
 Carriage Forward                                             142.69                                                    35.60 
 Travelling & conveyance expenses                                               69.66                                                    49.12 
 Contract Expense                                               10.64                                                          -   
 Bank charges                                               19.30                                                    10.35 
 Foreign exchange fluctuation loss                                                  6.68                                                    26.71 
 Membership and Subscription Charges                                               25.07                                                      7.20 
 Recruitment Expenses                                               10.44                                                    18.46 
 Salary & Wages- Contractors                                             874.38                                                    74.81 
 Printing and Stationery                                               19.44                                                      4.41 
 Asset written off                                               24.11                                                 452.17 
 Lease Rental Charges*                                          1,014.91                                                 648.88 
 VAT, Sales Tax and GST                                                20.28                                                 312.89 
 CAM Charges                                             326.52                                                 224.22 
 Brokerage and Commission                                              153.82                                                 192.25 
 Miscellaneous expenses                                               42.30                                                    26.58 

           Total 4,725.67                                         3,553.51                                             

Note:
Details of Payments to auditor (Amount in INR Lakhs)

Particulars  2023-24  2022-23 

As auditor
Audit Fee 8.00                                                 8.00                                                     
Tax audit fee 0.60                                                 0.60                                                     

In other capacity -                                                   -                                                       
Other services (certification fees) 0.62                                                 -                                                       

Total 9.22                                                 8.60                                                     

28. EARNINGS PER SHARE
(Amount in INR Lakhs)

Particulars  2023-24  2022-23 

Face value per Equity Share 10.00                                              10.00                                                   
(a) Basic earnings per share (81.38) (86.71)

(b) Diluted earnings per share (81.38) (86.71)

(c) Reconciliations of earnings used in calculating earnings per share

Profit attributable to the equity holders of the company used in calculating basic earnings per share (6,746.35) (5,351.61)

Profit attributable to the equity holders of the company used in calculating diluted earnings per share (6,746.35) (5,351.61)

Weighted average number of shares used as the denominator
Weighted average number of equity shares used as the denominator in calculating basic earnings per 
share 82,90,366.00                                 61,71,816.28                                     
Weighted average number of equity shares used as the denominator in calculating diluted earnings per 
share 82,90,366.00                                 61,71,816.28                                     

* Note: The company has negotiated the lease rentals with all stores and the same has been concluded as on the date of financial statements. The impact of changes in lease
rentals has been considered with complying with Ind-AS 116 provision. 
 * Note:- The some of stores Ind AS-116 treatment has been computed on the basic initial agreement terms except on the deemed renewal terms. 
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29. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS
(Amount in INR Lakhs)

Particulars
Current Non Current Total Current Non Current Total

Leave obligations 3.13    34.48   37.61  1.21   28.92   30.13   
Gratuity 3.42    54.34   57.76  1.65   52.41   54.06   

Total Employee Benefit 
Obligation

6.55   88.82   95.37  2.86   81.33   84.19   

(i) Leave Obligations
The leave obligations cover the company's liability for sick and earned leave.

(ii) Post Employement obligations
(a) Defined Benefit Plan - Gratuity

The amount recognised in the balance sheet and the movement in the net defined benefit obligation over the period are as follows
(Amount in INR Lakhs)

Present value of 
obligation

33.75   

13.07   
2.35    

15.42   

0.42    
9.02    
2.15    

11.59   
-   

Benefit payments directly by the employer (6.71)  

As at March 31, 2023 54.05   

15.25   
4.12    

19.37   

-   
(0.15)  
2.33    

(2.78)  

(0.60)    
-   

Benefit payments directly by the employer (15.07)   

As at March 31, 2024 57.75   

Remeasurements
Return of plan assets, excluding amount included in interest (income)
(Gain)/Loss from change in demographic assumptions
(Gain)/Loss from change in financial assumptions
Experience (gains)/losses

Total amount recognised in other comprehensive income
Employer contributions

Total amount recognised in profit or loss

Retrun of plan assets, excluding amount included in interest (income)
(Gain)/Loss from change in demographic assumptions
(Gain)/Loss from change in financial assumptions
Experience (gains)/losses

Total amount recognised in other comprehensive income
Employer contributions

Current service cost
Interest expense/(income)

Remeasurements

 As at March 31, 2024  As at March 31, 2023

The amount of the provision of INR 3.13 lakhs (March 31, 2023: INR 1.21 lakhs) is presented as current, since the company does not have an unconditional right to defer
settlement for any of these obligations.

The company provides for gratuity for employees in india as per the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. Employees who are in continuous service for a period of five years
are eligible for gratuity. The amount of gratuity payable on retirement/ termination is the employees last drawn basic salary per month computed proportionately for
15 days salary multiplied by number of years of service.

The gratuity plan is an unfunded plan. The company does not fund the liability and maintains a target level of funding to be maintained over a period of time based on
estimations of expected gratuity payments.

As at April 1, 2022

Current service cost
Interest expense/(income)

Total amount recognised in profit or loss

Particulars
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The significant actuarial assumptions were as follows:
 As at 

March 31, 2024 
 As at 

March 31, 2023 

Discount rate 7.23% 7.60%
Salary growth rate 6.00% 6.00%
Retirement Age 58 years 58 years
Withdrawal rate 7.00% 3.00%

A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumption as at March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023 is shown below:
Assumptions
Sensitivity Level 0.5% increase 0.5% decrease 0.5% increase 0.5% decrease

March 31, 2024
-2.41                                     2.59                                   -2.45                               2.60                         

% Impact -4.20% 4.50% -4.20% 4.50%

March 31, 2023
-3.15                                     3.43                                   -3.21                               3.47                         

% Impact -5.80% 6.30% -5.90% 6.40%

The following payments are expected contributions to the defined benefit plan in future years:
(Amount in INR Lakhs)

 As at 
March 31, 2024 

 As at 
March 31, 2023 

Year 1 3.41                                1.65                         
Year 2 to 5 25.28                             9.00                         
Year 6 to 10 30.21                             31.59                      
Above 10 year 65.45                             123.40                    
Total expected payments 124.35                           165.64                    

The average expected future working life at the end of the reporting period is 9 years (March 31, 2023: 13 years)

(b) Defined contribution plans
The company also has defined contribution plans. Contributions are made to provident fund in India for employees at the rate of 12% of basic salary as per regulations.
The contributions are made to registered provident fund administered by the government. The obligation of the company is limited to the amount contributed and it
has no further contractual nor any contructive obligation. The expense recognised during the period towards defined contribution plan is INR 45.22 lakhs (March 31,
2023: INR 46.76 lakhs)

Discount rate Salary growth rate

Impact on defined benefit obligation

Impact on defined benefit obligation

The sensitivity analysis above have been determined based on a method that extrapolates the impact on defined benefit obligation as a result of reasonable changes in
key assumptions occuring at the end of the reporting period. 

Particulars

Particulars
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(a) Employee option plan

1. Cover Story Employees' Stock Option Scheme ("ESOS 2022"):

2. Future Style Lab Limited Employees' Stock Option Scheme 2018 ("ESOS 2018"):

The exercise price of the share options is equal to the market price of the underlying shares on the date of grant. 

Movement during the period

Particulars
Number of options WAEP Number of options WAEP

Opening balance 1,31,128                                      10.00                                      19,000                               10.00                                     
Granted during the period 1,36,154                                      388.99                                    1,31,128                            10.00                                     
Exercised during the period -                                               -                                          -                                     -                                         
Forfeited during the period -                                               -                                          -                                     -                                         
Expired/Cancelled during the period -                                               -                                          (19,000)                              10.00                                     
Closing balance 2,67,282                                      203.06                                    1,31,128                           10.00                                     
Vested and exercisable 1,31,128                                      10.00                                      -                                     -                                         

Share options outstanding at the end of the period have the following expiry date and exercise prices
Share options Share options

 As at March 31, 2024  As at March 31, 2023 

G1-14/12/2022-(V1) 13-12-2023 10.00                                      1,31,128                            1,31,128                                
G2-14/06/2023-(V1) 13-06-2024 388.99                                    45,385                               -                                         
G2-14/06/2023-(V2) 13-06-2025 388.99                                    45,385                               -                                         
G2-14/06/2023-(V3) 13-06-2026 388.99                                    45,384                               -                                         

Total 2,67,282                           1,31,128                               
1.20 years 0.70 years

(b) Expense arising from share based payment transactions

(Amount in INR Lakhs)

Particulars
 As at 

March 31, 2024 
 As at 

March 31, 2023 

Employee stock option 496.85                               -                                         

Total employee share-based payment expense 496.85                               -                                         

Total expenses arising from share based payment transactions recognised in profit or loss as part of employee benefit expense were as follows:

Grant date Expiry date Exercise price (INR)

Weighted average remaining contractual life of options outstanding at the end of period

 As at March 31, 2024  As at March 31, 2023 

30. SHARE BASED PAYMENTS

The Company implemented Future Style Lab Limited Employee Stock Option Scheme 2018 (herein after referred to as "Future Style Lab Limited ESOPS 2018" or “the
Scheme”) as approved by the Shareholders of the Company.

The Employee Stock Option Plan (ESOP) is designed to provide incentives to employees above the designation of managers to deliver long term returns. Under the
plan, participants are granted options which vest upon completion of 24 months and 36 months of service from the grant date. Participation in the plan is at the
board's discretion and no individual has a contractual right to participate in the plan or to receive any guaranteed benefits.

Once vested, the options remain exercisable for a period of 3 years or such period as may be mention by the board. When exercisable, each option is convertible into
one equity share.

The number and weighted average exercise prices (WAEP) of the options and movement during the period is as follows:

The ESOS 2022 have long been recognised as an effective instrument to attact talent and align the interest of employees with those of the company and its
shareholders, providing an opportunity to employees to share the growth of the company and to create long-term wealth in the hands of employees. The main
objective of such Schemes is to give employees who are performing well, an opportunity to gain from the company’s performance, thereby acting as a retention tool
and to attract best talent available in the market. The employee reward through this mechanism has been well tested over a period of time.

There shall be a minimum period of one year between the Grant of Options and Vesting of Options. The Vesting shall extend upto such number of years as the Board
may decide. The maximum Vesting Period may extend up to three years from the date of Grant of Options or such number of years as the Board may decide. 

Cover Story Employees' Stock Option Scheme ("ESOS 2022") has been formulated and approved by the Board of Directors of the Company pursuant to the authority

vested in it by the Shareholders at the Extra-ordinary General Meeting of the Company held on December 14, 2022. 

The exercise price for the purpose of the grant of options shall be as decided by the Board.
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(Amount in INR Lakhs)
31. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
A. Commitments

i. Capital Commitments

 As at 
March 31, 2024 

 As at 
March 31, 2023 

-                                              54.00                                          

ii. Leases
Operating lease commitments - Company as lessee

(Amount in INR Lakhs)
 As at 

March 31, 2024 
 As at 

March 31, 2023 

Not later than one year 1,175.46                                    1,270.51                                     
Later than one year and not later than five years 2,676.79                                    3,538.22                                     
Later than five years 1,519.60                                    -                                               

            Total 5,371.85                                    4,808.73                                     

B. Contingent Liabilities
As at 

March 31, 2024
As at 

March 31, 2023

Other money for which the company is contingently liable -                                              -                                               
            Total -                                              -                                               

(Amount in INR Lakhs)
32. IND AS 116 “LEASES” 

Particulars
As at 

March 31, 2024
As at 

March 31, 2023
                                     1,250.53                                      2,882.09 
                                     4,175.69                                                   -   
                                        889.47                                          691.18 

Impairment of Right of use assets                                                  -                                            940.38 
                                     4,536.75                                      1,250.53 

Set out below are the carrying amounts of lease liabilities and the movements during the period:

Particulars
As at 

March 31, 2024
As at 

March 31, 2023
                                     1,606.13                                      3,585.41 
                                     4,863.37                                                   -   
                                        528.37                                          226.77 

Reversal of lease liabilities                                                  -                                         1,223.25 
                                     1,626.02                                          982.80 
                                     5,371.85                                      1,606.13 

Current Lease Liabilities                                      1,175.46                                          363.87 
Non-current Lease Liabilities                                      4,196.40                                      1,242.25 

33. SEGMENT REPORTING

Revenue arising from sale of products from two customers for March 31, 2024 is INR 1,011.06 Lakhs and 1,009.12 Lakhs respectively (March 31, 2023: 1,380.15 Lakhs), exceeds 10%
of revenue from operations of the Company.

Finance cost accrued during the year

Payment of lease liabilities
Closing Balance

The maturity analysis of lease liabilities are disclosed in Note 36
The effective interest rate for lease liabilities is 10%
Rental expense recorded for short-term leases was 1014.90 Lakhs for the year ended March 31, 2024.
Rental expense recorded for variable lease rent was NIL for the year ended March 31, 2024.
The Company does not face a significant liquidity risk with regard to its lease liabilities as the current assets are sufficient to meet the obligations related to lease liabilities as and
when they fall due.

The company primarily operates in one business segment only i.e. Retailing of Fashion, which is the only reportable segment. There is no other segment which requires reporting as
per Ind AS 108 "Operating Segments".

Additions during the year

Set out below are the carrying amounts of right-of-use assets recognised and the movements during the period:

Opening Balance
Additions during the year
Depreciation of Right of use assets 

Closing Balance

Opening Balance

Capital expenditure contracted for at the end of the reporting period but not recognised as liabilities is as follows:
(Amount in INR Lakhs)

Particulars

Estimated amount of contracts(net of advances) remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided 

The company leases various offices, warehouses and retail stores under non-cancellable operating leases expiring within 3 months to 3 years. The leases have varying terms,
escalation clauses and renewal rights. On renewal, the terms of the leases are renegotiated. 
The company has paid INR 1626.00 lakhs (March 31, 2023: INR 1096.50 lakhs) during the year towards lease payments.

Commitments for minimum lease payments in relation to non cancellable operating leases are as follows

(Amount in INR Lakhs)

The Company’s lease asset primarily consist of leases buildings for stores having the lease terms between 3 and 10 years. Effective 1st April, 2019, the Company adopted Ind AS 116
“Leases” and applied the standard to all lease contracts existing on 1st April, 2019 using the modified retrospective method and has taken the adjustment to retained earnings, on the
date of initial application. Consequently, the Company recorded the lease liability at the present value of the lease payments discounted at the incremental borrowing rate and the
right of use asset at its carrying amount as if the standard had been applied since the commencement date of the lease, but discounted at the Company’s incremental borrowing rate
at the date of initial application. 

Particulars
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34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(i) List of related parties as per the requirements of Ind-AS 24 - Related Party Disclosures

Name of Related Party

Ultimate Holding Company
Reliance Industries Limited India

Holding Company
Reliance Retail Ventures Limited India
FLFL Lifestyle Brands Limited (upto 14/06/22) India

Subsidiary Company
Cover Story Clothing UK Limited (Formerly known as Future Style Lab UK Limited) U.K.

Key Management Personnel (KMP)
Manjula Tiwari - Managing Director 
Akhilesh Prasad - Director
Vineeth Gopalkrishnan Nair - Director 
Vishnuprasad Mokkapatty - Director (w.e.f. 18/09/2020 upto 14/06/2022)
Ravikant Anwekar -Director (w.e.f. 09/02/2021 upto 14/06/2022)
Ritesh Raja - Director (w.e.f. 21/02/2022 upto 14/06/2022)

Fellow Subsidiaries

Reliance Jio Infocomm Limited

Reliance Project & Property Management Services Limited
Jio Payment Solutions Limited
Mesindus Ventures Limited
Reliance Consumer Power Limited
TV18 Broadcast Limited
Jio Platforms Limited

(ii) Transactions with related parties
The following transactions occurred with related parties (Amount in INR Lakhs)

Reliance Retail Ventures Limited Inter Corporate Deposits taken 3,195.00                                  4,457.38                            
Inter Corporate Deposits repaid (1,250)                                      (4,457)                                
Issue of OFCD 600.00                                      2,200.00                            
Issue of Share Capital 21,034.63                          

66.26                                        26.56                                  
(66.26)                                      (26.56)                               

FLFL Lifestyle Brands Limited -                                            4,743.00                            
-                                            32.66                                  

Reversal of Ind AS impact -                                            791.53                               
Inter Corporate Deposits repaid -                                            3,785.81                            

-                                            671.57                               

Reliance Retail Limited Sale of goods 1,269.00                                  650.57                               
Purchase of goods/services -                                            1.39                                    

Shopsense Retail Technologies Ltd. Website Development charges 74.43                                        54.00                                  

Reliance SMSL Limited Manpower supply 115.79                                      315.99                               

Reliance Jio Infocomm Limited Telecom services 3.79                                          1.38                                    
Manpower supply 187.08                                      -                                      
Purchase of capex goods 1,129.72                                  -                                      

Reliance Industries Limited Support Services 0.17                                          -                                      

Mesindus Ventures Limited Purchase of Goods 13.32                                        -                                      

Reliance Consumer Power Limited Support Services 7.41                                          -                                      

TV18 Broadcast Limited Sale of goods 0.14                                          -                                      
Cover Story Clothing UK Limited 
(Formerly known as 
Future Style Lab UK Limited)

Payment for Design Service 466.46                                      310.20                               

Reliance Retail Limited 
Shopsense Retail Technologies Limited
Reliance SMSL Limited 

Excellent Lifestyle Limited (Earlier known as Excellent Lifestyle Private Limited) (upto 14/06/2022)
Rachika Trading Limited (upto 14/06/2022)
Indus - League Clothing Limited (upto 14/06/2022)
Indus Tree Crafts Private Limited (ITCPL) (upto 14/06/2022)
Indus Tree Producer Transform Private Limited (Step down subsidiary of ITCPL) (upto 14/06/2022)

Nature of Transaction 2023-24

Interest on Inter Corporate Deposits repaid

Name

Interest on Inter Corporate Deposit Paid
Interest on Inter Corporate Deposit Charged

2.12                                          -                                      

Reliance Project & Property Management Services Ltd.

Jio Payment Solutions Limited Payment Gateway Service

2022-23

OCD Conversion into Equity
Interest on Optionally Convertible Debentures issued

Mineral Fashions Limited (upto 14/06/2022)
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(iii) Outstanding Balance of related parties (Amount in INR Lakhs)

Reliance Retail Ventures Limited Holding Company Optional Fullly Convertible 
Debenture 

2,800.00  2,200.00   

Reliance Retail Ventures Limited Holding Company Inter Corporate Deposits 1,945.00  -   
Reliance Retail Limited Fellow Subsidiary Sale of goods 898.81   834.04  
Reliance SMSL Limited Fellow Subsidiary Manpower Supply 133.89   315.73  
Reliance Jio Infocomm Limited Fellow Subsidiary Telecom Service 1.93   0.20   
Reliance Project & Property Management Services Ltd Fellow Subsidiary Manpower Supply 1,543.34   

Holding Company Inter Corporate Deposits -  -   
Optionally convertible Debentures -  (2,200.00)   

Reliance Industries Limited Ultimate Holding Company Support Services 0.18   -   
Reliance Consumer Power Limited Fellow subsidiary Support Services 8.01   -   
Mesindus Ventures Limited Fellow subsidiary Purchase of Goods 11.03   
Shopsense Retail Technologies Ltd. Fellow subsidiary Website Development 70.47   
Jio Payment Solutions Limited Fellow subsidiary Payment Gateway 2.28   
Jio Platforms Limited Fellow subsidiary Internet Services 0.05   
Cover Story Clothing UK Limited 
(Formerly known as 
Future Style Lab UK Limited)

Subsidiary Company Trade Receivables -   -   

Investments 0.09   0.09   

(iv) Key management personnel compensation (Amount in INR Lakhs)
Short term employee benefits 2023-24 2022-23
Director Remuneration 300.00   1,301.65   
Directors Sitting Fee -   0.20   

  Total 300.00   1,301.85   

(v) Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties

Future Lifestyle Brand Limited

Name of the party Nature of Relationship  2022-23 Particulars  2023-24 

The transactions with related parties are made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm's length transactions. Outstanding balances at the year end are unsecured and
interest free and settlement occurs in cash. There have been no guarantees provided or received for any related party receivables and payables. For the year ended March 31,
2024, the company has not recorded any impairment of receivables relating to amount owed by related parties (March 31, 2023: INR NIL). This assessment is undertaken each
financial year through examining the financial position of the related party and market in which the related party operates.
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35. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

i. Financial Instruments by Category (Amount in INR Lakhs)

 As at 
March 31, 2024 

 As at 
March 31, 2023 

 As at 
March 31, 2024 

 As at 
March 31, 2023 

FINANCIAL ASSETS

Amortised cost
Trade Receivables 1,370.42  1,448.18  1,370.42  1,448.18  
Cash and Cash Equivalents 36.39   345.80  36.39   345.80  
Other Bank Balances 247.41  - 247.41 -  
Investments 0.09  1,013.97  0.09 1,013.97  
Other Financial Assets 846.59  1,221.75  846.59 1,221.75  

Total 2,500.90   4,029.70   2,500.90   4,029.70   

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Amortised cost
Borrowings 2,104.78  - 2,104.78 -  
Trade Payables 2,750.43  1,351.12  2,750.43 1,351.12  
Lease Liabilities 5,371.86  1,606.12  5,371.86 1,606.12  
Other financial liabilities 1,314.35  832.49  1,314.35 832.49  

Total 11,541.42   3,789.73   11,541.42   3,789.73   

ii. Fair Value Heirarchy

iii. Valuation technique used to determine fair value
Specific Valuation techniques used to value financial instruments include:
 - the use of quoted market prices or dealer quotes for similar instruments
 - the fair value of the remaining financial instruments is determined using discounted cash flow analysis

iv. Valuation processes
The accouts and finance department of the company includes a team that performs the valuations of financial assets and liabilities required for
financial reporting purposes, including level 3 fair values. This team reports direclty to the chief financial officer (CFO) and the audit committte.
Discussions of valuation processes and results are held between the CFO, AC and the valuation team regulary in line with the company's reporting
requirements.

Level 1 - Level 1 hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices.

Level 2 - The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined using valuation techniques which maximise
the use of observable market data and rely as little as possible on entity-specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an
instrument are observable, the instrument is included in level 2.

Level 3 - If one or more of the significant inputs are not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in level 3.

Particulars
Carrying Amount Fair Value

The management assessed that the fair value of cash and cash equivalent, trade receivables, trade payables, and other current financial assets
and liabilities approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the short term maturities of these instruments.
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(A) Market Risk

(i) Foreign Currency risk

(a) The company exposure to foreign currency risk at the end of the reporting period are as follows
(Amount in INR Lakhs)

USD GBP EURO Total
 As at March 31, 2024

Advances to creditors -                       -                           -                           -                           
Trade Payables (46.17)                 (4.56)                       -                           (50.73)                     

Net exposure to foreign currency risk (46.17)                 (4.56)                       -                           (50.73)                     
 As at March 31, 2023

Advances to creditors -                           -                           -                           
Trade Payables (0.82)                    -                           -                           (0.82)                       

Net exposure to foreign currency risk (0.82)                   -                           -                           (0.82)                       

(b) Foreign currency sensitivity
1% increase or decrease in foreign exchange rates will have the following impact on profit before tax:

Year Ended March 31, 2023
1% Increase 1% Decrease 1% Increase 1% Decrease

USD (0.46)                    0.46                         (0.01)                       0.01                         
GBP (0.05)                    0.05                         -                           -                           
EURO -                       -                           -                           -                           
Net Increase/(decrease) in profit or loss (0.51)                   0.51                         (0.01)                       0.01                         

The company's activities exposes it to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company’s management oversees the management of these risks and ensures that the Company’s
financial risk activities are governed by appropriate policies and procedures and that financial risks are identified, measured and managed in accordance with the Company’s policies and
risk objectives.

Market risk is the risk of loss of future earnings, fair values or future cash flows that may result from a change in the price of a financial instrument. The value of a financial instrument may
change as a result of changes in the interest rates, foreign currency exchange rates and other market changes that affect market risk sensitive instruments. Market risk is attributable to all
market risk sensitive financial instruments including loans and borrowings, foreign currency receivables and payables.

The Company manages market risk through finance department, which evaluates and exercises independent control over the entire process of market risk management. The finance
department recommends risk management objectives and policies, which are approved by the Management. The activities of this department include management of cash resources,
implementing hedging strategies for foreign currency exposures and borrowing strategies.

Market risk comprises three types of risk: foreign currency risk, interest rate risk and other price risk.

The Company is exposed to exchange fluctuation risk for its purchase from overseas suppliers in various foreign currencies.

The Company follows established risk management policies including the use of derivatives like foreign exchange forward contracts to hedge exposures to foreign currency risk. However,
during the year the exposure to currency risk is not significant and therefore the exposure is not covered by any derivative instrument.

Year Ended March 31, 2024Particulars

Particulars
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(ii) Interest rate risk

(iii) Other price risk

(B) Credit risk

(C) Liquidity risk

Contractual maturities of financial liabilities (Amount in INR Lakhs)

Particulars Below 3 
Months

3-6 Months 6-12 Months 1-3 Years 3-5 Years More than 5 years Total

 As at March 31, 2024

Borrowings -                     -                        2,104.78               -                       -                           -                           2,104.78                 
Trade payables 2,702.38           1.33                      -                        46.72                   -                           -                           2,750.43                 
Lease Liabilities (Gross) 428.20               408.85                   791.15                   3,183.32              890.94                     1,469.70                  7,172.16                  
Other financial liabilities 1,314.35           -                        -                        -                       -                           -                           1,314.35                 

Total derivative financial liabilities 4,444.93           410.18                  2,895.93              3,230.04             890.94                    1,469.70                 13,341.72               

 As at March 31, 2023

Borrowings -                     -                        -                        -                       -                           -                           -                           
Trade payables 579.45 105.05                  106.42                  498.73                 59.35                       2.12                         1,351.12                 
Lease Liabilities (Gross) 177.02 168.06                  336.12                  927.08                 245.16                    42.33                       1,895.77                 
Other financial liabilities 832.49 -                        -                        -                       -                           832.49                    

Total financial liabilities 1,588.96           273.11                  442.54                  1,425.81             304.51                    44.45                      4,079.38                 

Contractual cash flows (Undiscounted)

The tables have been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Company can be required to pay. In the table below,
borrowings include both interest and principal cash flows.

Other financial assets like security deposits, loans and bank deposits are mostly with employees, group companies, government bodies and banks and hence, the Company does not expect
any credit risk with respect to these financial assets.

The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure.

With respect to trade receivables the Company has constituted teams to review the receivables on periodic basis and to take necessary mitigations, wherever required. The Company
primarily sells its products through its group channels where the company does not expect any credit risk and for other channels does not expect significant concentration of credit risk.
Credit risk is managed through credit approvals, establishing credit limits and continuously monitoring the credit worthiness of the customers to which the Company grants credit terms in
the normal course of the business.

Liquidity risk is defined as the risk that the Company will not be able to settle or meet its obligations on time or at reasonable price. Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining
sufficient cash and marketable securities and the availability of funding through an adequate amount of credit facilities to meet obligations when due. The Company’s finance team is
responsible for liquidity, funding as well as settlement management. In addition, processes and policies related to such risks are overseen by senior management. Management monitors
the Company’s liquidity position through rolling forecasts on the basis of expected cash flows.

Credit risk is the risk of loss that may arise on outstanding financial instruments if a counterparty default on its obligations. The Company’s exposure to credit risk arises majorly from trade
receivables and other financial assets.

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of change in market interest rates. The management is responsible for the
monitoring of the Company' interest rate position. Various variables are considered by the management in strucutring the Company's borrowings to achieve a reasonable and competitive
cost of funding.

However during the periods presented in the financial statements, the Company has primarily borrowed funds under fixed interest rate arrangements with banks and financial institutions
and therefore the Company is not significantly exposed to interest rate risk.

The Company is not significantly exposed to changes in prices of other commodities/securities.
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37. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

(Amount in INR Lakhs)

Particulars
As at 

March 31, 2024
As at 

March 31, 2023
Borrowings 2,104.78                       -                                 
Trade payables 2,750.43                       1,351.12                       
Other financial liabilities 1,314.35                       832.49                          
Less: cash and banks balances (283.80)                         (345.79)                         

Net Debt 5,885.76                       1,837.82                       

Equity Share Capital 829.04                          829.04                          
Other Equity (407.29)                         5,241.77                       

Total Capital 421.75                          6,070.81                       

Capital and net debt 6,307.51                       7,908.63                       

Gearing ratio 0.93                               0.23                               

(Amount in INR Lakhs)
38. ASSETS PLEDGED AS SECURITY
The carrying amount of assets pledged as security for current and non current borrowings are:

Particulars
As at 

March 31, 2024
As at 

March 31, 2023
CURRENT ASSETS

i. Financial Assets
First Charge
Cash and Bank Balances 283.80                          345.80                          

ii. Non Financial Assets
First Charge
Inventories 1,638.52                       2,589.86                       
Trade Receivables 1,370.42                       1,448.18                       
Investment -                                 1,013.88                       
Other Financial Asset 373.61                          655.83                          
Other Current Asset 2,473.37                       1,303.51                       

NON CURRENT ASSET
PPE (Movable Asset) 1,718.29                       766.07                          

Total current assets pledge as security 7,858.01                       8,123.13                       

For the purpose of the company's capital management, capital includes issued equity capital, convertible preference shares, share premium and
all other equity reserves attributable to the equity holders of the parent. The primary objective of the Company's capital management is to
maximise the shareholder value.

The company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions and the requirements of the
financial covenants. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the company may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to
shareholders or issue new shares. The company monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital plus net debt. The
company includes within debt, interest bearing loans and borrowings, trade and other payables, less cash and cash equivalents, excluding
discontinued operations.

In order to achieve this overall objective, the Company’s capital management, amongst other things, aims to ensure that it meets financial
covenants attached to the borrowings that define capital structure requirements.
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(Amount in INR Lakhs)

Gross amount
Gross amounts set 
off in the balance 

sheet

Net amount 
presented in the 

balance sheet

Financial 
instruments 

collateral
Net amount

 As at March 31, 2024
Financial assets
Investment 0.09                        -                          0.09                        -                          0.09                        
Cash and cash equivalents 36.39                      -                          36.39                      -                          36.39                      
Other Bank Balances 247.41                   -                          247.41                   -                          247.41                   
Trade receivables 6,228.43                (4,858.01)               1,370.42                -                          1,370.42                
Other financial assets 846.59                   -                          846.59                   -                          846.59                   
Total 7,358.91                (4,858.01)               2,500.90                -                          2,500.90                

Financial liabilities
Trade payables 7,608.44                (4,858.01)               2,750.43                -                          2,750.43                
Borrowings 2,104.78                -                          2,104.78                -                          2,104.78                
Lease Liabilities 5,371.86                -                          5,371.86                -                          5,371.86                
Other financial liability 1,314.35                -                          1,314.35                -                          1,314.35                
Total 16,399.43              (4,858.01)               11,541.42              -                          11,541.42              

As at March 31, 2023

Financial assets
Investment 1,013.97                -                          1,013.97                -                          1,013.97                
Cash and cash equivalents 345.80                   -                          345.80                   -                          345.80                   
Other Bank Balances -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          
Trade receivables 1,636.03                (187.85)                  1,448.18                -                          1,448.18                
Other financial assets 1,221.75                1,221.75                -                          1,221.75                
Total 4,217.55                (187.85)                  4,029.70                -                          4,029.70                

Financial liabilities
Trade payables 1,538.97                (187.85)                  1,351.12                -                          1,351.12                
Lease Liabilities 1,606.12                -                          1,606.12                -                          1,606.12                
Other financial liability 832.49                   -                          832.49                   -                          832.49                   
Total 3,977.58                (187.85)                  3,789.73                -                          3,789.73                

39. OFFSETTING FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
The following table presents the recognised financial instruments that are offset and other agreements but not offset, as at March 31, 2024 and
March 31, 2023 . The column ‘net amount’ shows the impact on the company’s balance sheet if all set-off rights were exercised.

Particulars

Effects of offsetting on the balance sheet Related amounts not offset

Cover Story Clothing Limited | 53



COVER STORY CLOTHING LIMITED (Formerly known as Future Style Lab Limited)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

(Amount in INR Lakhs)
As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023

411.66   263.46   
-   -   

-   -   

-   -   

-   -   

Sr No. Name of the Ratio Numerator Denominator FY 2023-24 FY 2022-23 % Variance Reason for significant change (25% or more)

1
Current Ratio 
(in times)

Current Asset Current Liabilities 0.95   2.82   -66.22%
Current Liability of INR 13 Cr. increased due to
Capex in Stores

2
Debt-Equity Ratio 
(in times)

Total Debt Equity 11.25 0.36 3004.52%
Management has infused INR 19.45 Cr. ICD
and INR 6 Cr. OFCD during the year

3
Debt Service Coverage Ratio 
(in times)

Earnings Available for 
Debt Service

Debt Service -0.83  -1.60  48.20%
Debt is increased by INR 19.45 Cr. ICD and INR
6 Cr. OFCD

4
Return on Equity Ratio 
(in %)

PAT
Avg. Shareholders 
Equity

-813.75% -10.73% 7483.92%
During the year company management has
infused INR 210 Cr. equity due to which return
on equity increased.

5
Inventory turnover ratio 
(in times)

Net Sales Avg. Inventory 3.63   3.15   15.13% -

6
Trade Receivables turnover 
ratio 
(in times)

Net Sales Avg. Trade Receivables 5.44   4.30   26.52%
During the Net sales has been increased by
47% while average debtors increase by 16%
only.

7
Trade payables turnover ratio 
(in times)

Net Purchases Avg.Trade payables 2.75   1.55   77.11%
Trade Payable of INR 13 Cr. increased due to
Capex in Stores

8
Net capital turnover ratio 
(in times)

Net Sales Working Capital -25.28  1.10   -2398.76%
Working Capital has been reduced due to
Current Liability increased by INR 13 Cr.
related to capex vendor.

9
Net profit ratio 
(in %)

Net Profit Net Sales -87.99% -102.46% -14.12% -

10
Return on Capital employed 
(in %)

EBIT Capital Employed -91.06% -67.07% -35.77%

During Management has infused INR 19.45 Cr.
ICD and INR 6 Cr. OFCD. Due to infusion of
fund and corresponding lower sale return on
capital employed down to 35.77%

11
Return on investment 
(in %)

Total Comprehensive 
Income

Free Equity 23.24% 23.37% -0.55% -

Definitions: 

40. DETAILS OF DUES TO MICRO AND SMALL ENTERPRISES AS DEFINED UNDER MICRO, SMALL AND MEDIUM ENTERPRISES DEVELOPMENT ACT, 2006 (MSMED ACT, 2006)

(j) Capital Employed = Tangible Net Worth + Total Debt + Deferred Tax Liability
(k) Return on Investment = Total Comprehensive Income / Free Equity

Particulars
i)Principal amount and interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier covered under MSMED Act:

Principal
Interest*
ii) The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section16, of the MSMED Act, 2006 along with the amounts of the payment made
to the supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounting year.

iii) The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have been paid but beyond the appointed
day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under MSMED Act.

iv) The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year*

v) The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues as above
are actually paid to the small enterprise for the purpose of disallowance as a deductible expenditure under section 23 of the MSMED Act,
2006

(a) Earning for available for debt service = Net Profit after taxes + Non-cash operating expenses like depreciation and other amortisations + Interest + other adjustments like loss on sale of Fixed assets etc.
(b) Debt service = Interest & Lease Payments + Principal Repayments
(c) Average inventory = (Opening inventory balance + Closing inventory balance) / 2
(d) Net credit sales = Net credit sales consist of gross credit sales minus sales return
(e) Average trade receivables = (Opening trade receivables balance + Closing trade receivables balance) / 2

* Interest due on the outstanding amount will be considered on actual basis i.e. payment basis

This information as required to be disclosed under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 has been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information
available with the Company. This has been relied upon by the auditors.

41. ACCOUNTING RATIOS

(f) Net credit purchases = Net credit purchases consist of gross credit purchases minus purchase return
(g) Average trade payables = (Opening trade payables balance + Closing trade payables balance) / 2
(h) Working capital = Current assets - Current liabilities. 
(i) Earning before interest and taxes = Profit before exeptional items and tax + Finance costs - Other Income
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(A). The Company have not advanced or loaned to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the
understanding that the Intermediary shall:

(a)  directly or indirectly lent in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (Ultimate
Beneficiaries) or
(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimat Beneficiaries.

(xi) Utilisation of Borrowed funds and share premium:

42. OTHER STATUTORY INFORMATION

(i) Title deeds of Immovable Property not held in the name of the Company: 
The Company does not possess any immovable property (other than properties where the Company is the lessee and the lease agreements are
duly executed in favour of the lessee) whose title deeds are not held in the name of the Company during the financial year ended March 31, 2024
and March 31, 2023.

(ii) Fair valuation of investment property:
The Company shall disclose as to whether the fair value of investment property (as measured for disclosure purposes in the financial statements) is
based on the valuation by a registered valuer as defined under rule 2 of Companies (Registered Valuers and Valuation) Rules, 2017. Since, the
Company does not have any investment property during any reporting period, the said disclosure is not applicable.

(iii) Revaluation of Property, Plant and Equipment and Right-of-Use Assets:
The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right-of-use Assets)during the year.

(iv) Revaluation of Intangible assets :
The Company has not revalued the Intangible Assets during the year.

(v) Details of Benami Property held:
No proceedings have been initiated or pending against the Company for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition)
Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder.

(vi) Wilful Defaulter :
The Company is not declared as a wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender during the any reporting period.

(vii) Relationship with Struck off Companies :
The Company has not identified any transactions or balances in any reporting periods with companies whose name is struck off under section 248
of the Companies Act,  2013 or section 560 of Companies Act, 1956.

(viii) Registration of charges or satisfaction with Registrar of Companies (ROC):
There are no charges or satisfaction of charges yet to be registered with Registrar of Companies beyond the statutory period during the reporting
periods for the company.

(ix) Compliance with number of layers of companies
The Company has complied with the number of layers prescribed under clause (87) of section 2 of the Act read with Companies (Restriction on
number of Layers) Rules, 2017.

(x) Compliance with approved Scheme(s) of Arrangements
There are no scheme of arrangements which have been approved by the Competent Authority in terms of sections 230 to 237 of the Companies

Act, 2013 during the reporting periods.
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1 to 44Material Accounting Policies and Notes Forming Part of the Financial 
Statements

(B). The Company have not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding
(whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall:

(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party 
(Ultimate Beneficiaries) or 
(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(xii) Disclosures pertaining to corporate social responsibility activities
The company does not covered under section 135 of the companies act (Corporate social responsibility).

(xiii) Disclosure in relation to undisclosed income
The Company does not have any transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income
during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income
Tax Act, 1961).

(xiv) Details of Crypto Currency or Virtual Currency
The Company have not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during reporting periods.

43. Previous year figures have been regrouped/ rearranged, wherever considered necessary to conform to current year’s classification

44. The financial statements were authorized for issue by the board of directors on April 12, 2024.
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